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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Reports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30, 2023.

L Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary ofTcrms

A: Acronyms and Abbrcviations

CEO Chief Executive Ofticer

DG Director General

CBK Central Bank of Kenya

ICPAK Institute ofCertified Public Accountants ofKenya

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards

MD Managing Director

NT National Trcasury

OCOB Office ofthe Controller ofBudget

OAG Office of the Auditor General

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Act of2007

PFM Public Finance Management

PPE Property Plant & Equipment

PSASB Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

SAGAs Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

SC State Corporations

wB World Bank

VC Vice Chancellor

B: Glossary of Tcrms

Fiduciary Managcmcnt- Members of Management directly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources ofthe organisation

Comparativc Year- Means the prior period.

lv
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual lLcports and Financial Statcmcnts
l'or thc Ycar Ended Junc 30,2023.

2. KEY EN'I'ITY INFORMAI'ION AND MANAGF]ME,NT

(a) llackground information

Chuka Univcrsity is an indcpcndcnt public cntity established through a chartcr as pcr thc

lJnivcrsitics Acl, 2012. It is rcprcsented by thc Cabinet Secrctary lor Dducation, who is

rcsponsiblc for thc gcncral policy and stratcgic dircction of the Univcrsity. Chuka lJniversity

has a varicty of Acadcmic programmcs, which arc olfered under the following six Facultics:

Business Studies, Ans and Ilumanities, Education and Rcsourccs Dcvelopmcnt, Agriculture

and Environmental Studies, Sciencc, Engineering and 'l-echnology and l.-aculty of l-aw.

(b) Principal Activitics
'l'he Mandatc of the Chuka University as providcd by thc Chuka Univcrsity Charter dated

8thJanuary 20 t 3 is to:

i) Provide directly, or in collaboration with other institutions of higher learning,

lacilities for university education, the integration oftcaching, rescarch and effcctivc

application of knowledge and skills to the life, work and welfarc of citizens of

Kcnya.

ii) Participate in the discovery, transmission, preservation and enhancement ol
knowledge and to stimulate the intcllectual participalion ol studcnts in thc

cconomic, social, cultural, scientific, and technological developmcnt of Kenya.

iii) Provide and advance univcrsity cducation and lraining to appropriately qualificd

candidates, leading to the confcrment of degrees and award of Diplomas and

certificates and such other qualifications as the Council and the Senatc shall from

time to timc detcrmine and in so doing contributc to manpowcr nceds.

iv) Conduct exanrinations 1'or such academic awards as may bc provided in the statulcs

pcrtaining to thc University and

v) Examine and make proposals for new faculties, schools, institules, departments,

rcsourcc and research centres, study courses and subjects of study.

Chuka Univ$iry is ISO 9001:2015 Ce i/ie......hrsti.itt,:E riit,ntlntilS ntii.tbiliiIt,tlhtttl.il'(



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statemcnts
For thc Year Endcd Junc 30, 2023.

OUR MISSION

'fo gencrate, preserve and share knowledge for effective leadership in higher education,

training, research and outreach through nurturing an intellectual culture that integrates theory

with practice and innovation.

Vision

'fo be a Premier University for the provision of quality education, training and research for

sustainable national and global development

Core Values

'l'he Unive rsity is committed to the following set of core values:

i) Customer value and focus

ii) Diversity & social faimess

iii) Environmental consciousness

iv) Fidetity to the law

v) lnnovation

vi) Integrity

vii) Passion for Excellence

vii i) Peaceful Co-existence

ix) Professionalism and Confidentiality

x) Prudence utilisation ofresources

xi) Team work

xii)Timeliness and Devotion to duty.

(c) Kcy Managcmcnt

'Ihe University's day-to-day management is under the lollowing kcy organs:

i) The Council

ii) 'Ihe Management Board

vl
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Stltcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd .Iune 30,2023,

(d) Fiduciary Managcmcnt

'l'hc kcy rnanagcrncnt pcrsonncl who hcld oflicc during thc financial ycar cndcd 30'l'Junc

2023 and had direct fiduciary responsibility wcrc:

I)esignation Name

I')rol llcnry Muternbci M'lkiugu, I'h.l). Vice Chanccllor

l)roL llunicc Warnuyu Githac, (l'hD) Ag.Dcputy Vicc Chanccllor (AI'P&I))

Prof. Gilbert Mbaka Nduru , (Ph.D) Ag. Dcputy Vice Chanccllor (n I{SA).

Dr. Pctcr Opiayo Mabubi, Ph.D. I{cgistrar (Administration and l)lanning)

Dr. Samwel Macharia Chigoc, I'h.D. Rcgistrar (Acadernics)

CPA.John K.'fhuranira, MBA, CPA (K),CPS(K) Financc Olficcr

Mr.Naftal Ocnga, M[lA,llcom Procurement Officcr

(c) Fiduciary Ovcrsight Arrangcmcnts

'l'he kcy fiduciary oversight committcc of the Univcrsity lor the llinancial Ycar 2022/2023

and thcir rcspcctive lunctions arc outlincd bclow:

l. Finance, Farms, Entcrprisc Company and Gcncral-Purpose Committcc

i) To review and recommend approval ofpolicies and conditions for sound managemcnt

ofthe financial processes and opcrations.

ii) To rcview and report to thc l]oard on thc annual auditcd accounts.

iii) 1'o review and recommend approval ofpolicies and conditions for sound management

of fi nancial investments.

iv) To formulate policies and conditions for sound Inanagcment of lJnivcrsity funds.

v) 'l'o discuss and recommend to the council Annual and Quartcrly l.'inancial reports.

2. Audit, Govcrnance and Risk Managcmcnt Committcc

i) To assist in enhancing internal controls in order to improve efficicncy, transparency and

accountability in the managcment of University lunds

ii) To Examine internal and extelnal audit reports and rccommendations aftcr managemcnl

responsc to cnsurs action is taken

iii) To follow up to ensure action is lakcn to resolvc Public Accounls Committcc

recommendations

iv) To Providc ovcrsight on risk managcmcnt proccsses

v) Any othcr duty as set out in the Audit Commiltce Charter

vlt
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Year Endcd Junc 30,2023.

3. IIuman Ilcsourccs Managcmcnt Committcc

i) 'l'o providc guidancc and dircction to compcnsation and bcncfits of cmployces as

pcr the ncgotiatcd Collcctivc llargaining Agrcemcnts as well as ncgotiate for group

hcalth care benefits.

ii) 'l'o implemcntation of crnploycc training and dcvclopment policy depcnding on

compctcncy needs asscssment.

iii)'l'o carry out thc organization cmployee needs assessmcnt and rccomnrcnd for

recruitment ofvarious categorics of staff.

iv)'l'o handlc and rccommcnd to thc council staff disciplinary matters and lhe

appropriatc action to be taken.

4. Iluilding, Planning and I)cvclopmcnt Committcc

i) 'l'o ovcrsec implemcntation of developmcnt projccts in thc Univcrsity.

ii) To considcr and recommcnd to thc Council building projecls budget for the University.

iii) 'l'o monilor and appraise dcvclopmcnt projects for thc Univcrsity.

5. Gricvanccs Handling and Appcals Committcc

i) 'l'o hear any appeals related to staff and students disciplinc and recommend to the

council lor the neccssary action.

ii) 'lb arbitratc thc cases brought to thc committee lrom various organs ofthc lJnivcrsity.

6. Scaling and Ilonorary Dcgrcc Committce

i) 'l'o make rccommcndations to the council on the award of I lonorary Dcgrees to

various personncl.

ii) 'fo recommcnd to the Council studcnts due for graduation.

iii) 'l'o proposc to thc Council, thc graduation dates as proposed by the Senatc.

l) f,ntity [Icadquartcrs
P.O. []ox 109, 60400

Iiccrcation and Busincss Centre Building
Off Embu-Meru I Iighway
Chuka, Kcnya

g) Entity Contacts
'l'clephonc: (25 4) 02023 I 05 l2l
Ccll phone 07 I 5505858/07 3 1 620266

E-mail: info@chuka.ac.ke
v l
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30,2023.

h) Entity Bankcrs
1. Kcnya Cornrrercial Bank Ltd,

P.O. Box 7014 60400

Chuka
2. Coopcrative llank of Kcnya

P.O. Box l0 I - 60400

Chuka
3. Equrty Bank Ltd

P.O. Box Zl3 - 60400

Chuka
4. Famrly Bank Ltd

P.O Box 3092-60200

Mcru
5. ABSA bank ofKenya ltd

P.O. Box 88-60100

Embu
6. Standard Chartered Bank Ltd

P.O. Box t 09-60200

Meru
i) IndcpcndcntAuditors

Auditor General

Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00r00
Nairobi, Kenya

j) Principal Legal Advisor
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P O. Box 401 l2
City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kcnya

lx
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For the Ycar Endcd Junc 30, 2023.

3. TIIE UNIVEITSITY COUNCIL

Namc(s) Concisc l)cscription
Prof. David'f. K. Scrrem, I)h.[).,
oGw
Council Chairman

Profcssor [)avid K. Scrcm was born on 23rd Novcmber,
1951. IIc holds a Doctor of llducation (lJd.t).) dcgrcc in
Administration of I Iighcr Flducation from thc Univcrsity of
Wyoming, USA. I Ie has scrvcd as I Icad Dcpartmcnt, Dean,
Principal, Deputy Vicc Chanccllor and Ag. Vicc Chancellor
in various Univcrsities in Kcnya. ProL is a scasoned
cducational adminislralor and rcscarchcr with a bias in
Educational l,cadcrship and Managcment. I Ic is a membcr
of several profcssional associations.l)rof. Scrcm has scrved
as a lloard mcmbcr of Kcnya Airways, the National
Housing Corporation (NIIC), Kenya Industrial Rcsearch
and Dcvclopmcnt Institute (KIRDI) and currcntly scrving as

thc Chairman of Mount Kcnya [.lnivcrsity (MKU) Council
and a Prolcssor in lhe Dcpartment of Dducational
Management and I'olicy Studics, Moi Univcrsity. I,rofcssor
is thc current Chuka University Council Chairman.

lliram M. Kahiro
Council Member

!

\

Mr. Hiram Kahiro was born on 22nd April, 1972. llc has

worked in Public Administration for over 25 ycars. Hc
prcviously served as District Oflccr, County
Commissioner, County Secrctary and Ilcad of Public
service at Nyandarua County Government. I Ie is currcntly
serving as lhc Sccrctary, Administration and Head of
administration and support services at thc National
'l'reasury, Ag. CEO, Statc Omccrs and l)ublic Officcrs
Motor Car [-oan Schemc Fund of thc National Governmcnt,
reprcsentative to the Cabinct Secretary as a Board Mcmber
of thc Witness Protection Agcncy and thc Civil Scrvants
Housing Schemc Fund. He holds an MA and BA from The
Univcrsity of Nairobi. IIc scrvcs in the Chuka University
council as a rcprcscntativc to thc Cabinct Sccrctary, the
National 'l'rcasury and I)lann ing.

Crispus Micheni Ndckc
Council Member

Mr Crispus Micheni Ndcke was born on l8th Dccember,
1960. tle is a scasoned cducational administrator and has

worked in Public Administration for ovcr 30 ycars. llc hold
a Masters in Psychology from Mount Kenya Univcrsity
(MKU) and a Bachclor of Ilducation lrom Kcnya Mcthodist
lJnivcrsity (KllMU).llc is currently a council membcr and
Chairpcrson of Audit, Govcrnancc and llisk Managemcnt
Commiltec of thc Chuka Univcrsity Council.

x
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For the Ycar Enrlcd Junc 30, 2023.

[-inet Kwarnboka Maganda
Council Member

Mrs Linct Kwarnboka Maganda was born on 23'd Octobcr
1972. She has workcd in Public Administration lor ovcr 25
years. Latcly she scrvcd as a mernbcr of Nyanrira County
Asscrnbly Scrvice Iloard. She holds a Mastcr of Arts Dcgrcc
in Christian Flducation lrorn livangel Christian Univcrsity
of Arnerica and a llachelor of education from Kcnyatta
Univcrsity.Shc is currcntly a council rncrnbcr at Chuka
[Jnivcrsity and Chairpcrson of Fluman Rcsource
Managenrent Committcc of thc Chuka Univcrsity Council.

Samuel Gachcru Gitonga
Council Member

Mr. Samucl Gachcru Citonga was born on 2nd April 1981.
LIc works has a lecturer at cooperative Univcrsity. I-lc holds
Mastcr of Sociology and Community Dcvclopment from
The tJniversity ol Nairobi, I)achelor of Education Dcgree
frorn Catholic Univcrsity and currently pursuing PHD-
Social 'fransformation in'l'angaza University College .tle is
currcntly a council mcmber and Chairperson of
Building,Planning,Developmcnt Committee of the Chuka
Univcrsity Council.

Zephania Rwanda Mbaka
Council Mcmbcr

l

Mr. T,ephania Rwanda Mbaka was born on 2n Junc I985.
FIe holds a Master of Business Administration (Stratcgic
Management) and [Jachelor of education (Arts),
mathematics & business studies, with IT. I Ic previously
served as Chief Officer - Finance and Econornic Planning
in Tharaka Nithi County and Ilranch Managcr at the Kenya
Institutc of Managernent. He is currcntly a council mcmber
at Chuka University and Chairperson of
Irinance,farms,cnterprisc and General purposc Committee
ofthc Chuka University Council.

xl
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statcmcnts
l'or thc Ycnr Bndcd .Iunc 30,2023.

Margarct M. Makhungu was born on l2th May,l 967. Shc is
an IC'l' prolcssional and consultant with ovcr 25 ycars'
expcriencc in Information Communications'l'echnology.
Shc has lcd and worked with diffcrent teams in multi-
cultural and multi-skilled cnvironmcnts in Africa, Asia and

Europc. Shc holds a Masters degree in Business

Administration from thc United States lnternational
University L.ISIU (Stratcgic Managemcnt and l'f
manageme nt), a ccrtificatc in Financial Markets from the

Sccurities Institutc of Australia, and is an Electrical
Bngineer with a Bachclor of 'l'cchnology dcgrcc in
Electrical and Communications 'l'cchnology from Moi
Univcrsity, Iildoret. She is currently a council member at

Chuka Univcrsi

xlt

t
s

Margarct M. Makhungu
Council Mcmbcr

Dr- Wahomc lLureri was born on l0t
a PhD in llusiness Administration (Strategic Management),
MIIA and a [].Ed. Scicncc. IIc has ovcr l0 ycars working
expcricncc in senior managcment positions in public scrvicc
and currently working in the State Department for
University Education and research. I Ie currcntly Reprcscnts
the Principal Secrctary, State Department for University
Education and Research in Chuka University Council.

Prof. I Ienry Mutembci M'lkiugu was born on [ 6r

1970. tle is a Professor of Veterinary Reproduction and

Obstctrics ('l'hcriogenology) and a Specialist in Disaster

Management and l{isk Mitigation Strategies. FIe is a

renowned scholar and administrator. lle worked in several

managemen( positions in the University of Nairobi. FIc

joincd Chuka University as Deputy Vice Chanccllor in
charge of Administration, Finance, Planning and

Dcvelopment beforc he was clevatcd to thc current position

of Council Secrctary/Vicc Chancellor/CEO Chuka

Univcrsity.

March 1972. I Ie holds

h August

I)r. Wahome Rurcri.
Council Mcmbcr

I)ro[. Ilcnry M. M'lkiugu, Ph.D.
Vice Chancellor/CEO & Sccretary
to the Council
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Finnncial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30,2023.

4. MANAGE,MENTTEAM

Prof. Gilbcrl Mbaka Nduru, (Ph.D)
Ag. Dcputy Vicc Chanccllor (ARSA).

Prof. Gilbcrt Mbaka Nduru was born on 28th
February 1965. Hc is a Prolessor of Environmental
Studics and holds a BIld, MA and PhD (Moi
University). ['lc has scrved as Dircctor of Rcsearch,
Linkagcs and International l)rograms as wcll as Dcan
of Environmental Studies and Rcsourccs
Dcvclopment. He is currently the Ag. Dcputy Vicc
Chanccllor in chargc of Academic, Rescarch and
Studcnt A ffairs.

xl

Namc of thc Staff& Itcsponsibility Concisc Dcscription
Prof. llcnry M. M'lkiugu, Ph.D

Vice Chancellor/CEO
Prof. I-lenry Mutcmbci M'lkiugu was born on l6'h
August I970. IIc is a l)rolcssor of Vctcrinary
Ii.eproduction and Obstetrics ('l'heriogcnology) and a

Spccialist in Disastcr Management and l{isk
Mitigation Stratcgics. FIc is a renowned scholar and
adrninistrator. LIe worked in scvcral managcmcnt
positions in thc Univcrsity of Nairobi. Ilc joincd
Chuka Univcrsity as Deputy Vicc Chanccllor in
chargc of Adrn inistration, l"inancc, Planning and
Dcvclopmcnt beforc he was elevated to the currcnt
position of Council Sccrctary/Vice Chancellor/CEO
Chuka Univcrsity.

Prof. Eunicc Wamuyu Githac, (I'hD)
Ag. Dcputy Vicc-Chanccllor (AFP&D)

Prof. Eunicc Warluyu Githac was born on
Septcmber 4, 1979. She has served as tho Chair oF
the Department of Biological Sciences and also actcd
as thc Dircctor of I{cscarch and Extcnsion at various
tirncs. Beforc joining Chuka University, shc servcd
as Chair ofthc Department ofEnvironmental Studics
and l.'orestry at Maasai Mara Univcrsity. Shc is an
Associate Professor of Plant Ecology and holds a
Ph.D. in Dryland Rcsource Managemcnt (Plant
Ecology and Environment) from thc Univcrsity of
Nairobi. Shc is thc Acting Dcputy Vice Chancellor
in charge of Adrn in istration, Financc, Planning, and
Dcvclo mcnt.
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statcmcnts
l-or thc Ycar Endcd .Iunc 30, 2023.

CPA.John K.'I-huranira, MBA, CPA (K),
CPS (K)
l'inancc 0fficcr

Dr, Samwel Macharia Chcgc, Ph.D.
Ileg[trar (Acadcmics)

Dr. Samwcl Macharia Chcgc was born on 22nd
August 1978. IIe has served in various public and
privatc institutions including Dcdan Kimathi
University of'l'echnology whcre he served as an ISO
9001 :2008 QMS coordinator bcfore joining Chuka
Univcrsity. I lc holds t]. ed Arts, I'GD-tlllM, Msc
and Ph.D. lrom Univcrsity of Science and
'l'cchnology. IIe is the Registrar Academic Alfairs

Dr. Peter Opiayo Mabubi, (Ph.D.)

Itegistrar (Ad ministration and
Planning)

Dr. Pcter Opiayo Mabubi was born on 2l't
September l97l.FIe has served in various senior
administratives positions in the Ministry of
Education, KASNEB, Moi Univcrsity and Pwani
Univcrsity where hc served as Rcgistrar (AF&P)
before joining Chuka l.lniversity in the same

capacity.llc holds t].cds (Arts),M.cd (Economics of
Education),PGD-HRM and PhD (Economics of
Education).1-le is the currcnt Registrar-
Administration and Planning.

CPA.John K. Thuranira was born on 3 I't Dccembe r,

1974. lle served in various Companics and

institutions as an Accountant belore moving to
Constituencics Development Fund (CDF) as a Fund
Manager in Kigumo & 'l'etu Constitucncies. I'[e

holds BCOM, MBA, (Egerton), CPA (K) and a CPS
(K).1Ie is the current Finance Officer, Chuka
Univcrsity.

xlv
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual lleports and Financial Statcnlcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30,2023.

5. CfIAIRMAN'S S'I'ATI,I,MEN'l'

On bchalfofthc lJnivcrsily Council and on tny own bchal{, I takc great plcasurc to prcscnt thc

Annual llcport and l.'inancial Statctncnts for Chuka University lor thc ycar cndcd 30th June

2023. Since its establishrncnt, Chuka University has continucd to exccutc its tnandatc of
gencrating, preserving and sharing knowlcdgc for cffbctive Ieadcrship in higher cducation,

training, rcsearch and outrcach through nurturing an intcllectual culturc that intcgratcs thcory

with practicc and innovation.

Am happy to report that we have rnadc rcrrarkable progrcss through the stratcgic partncrships

we forgcd wilh our key stakeholders in multi-pronged arcas of dcvelopmcnt. In linc with the

Univcrsity's strategic plan, Kenya's Vision 2030 and thc llottom up ccononric model, the

council has garnercd notablc significant milcstoncs.

I hasten to observe that Univcrsity cducation is undcrgoing challenging times due to a
combination offactors. In Chuka Univcrsity, rvc have taken firm mcasurcs to cnsure wc remain

on thc growth trajectory set out in lhc master, strategic and opcrational plans. The mcasurcs

includc: rc-engincering income gcnerating activities; offcring of markct drivcn acadcmic

programmes to attract students; refocusing research to increase output disscmination and

uptake; improving cfficicncy in servicc delivcry; and embarking on digital and blendcd

learning and operations.

The new University Council that came to office on 23'd May 2023 will continuc building

synergics with its stakeholders including the National Government ofthc Republic of Kcnya,

thc County Government, the Local Community, the International Comrnunity, the [Jnivcrsity

Council, the Managcment, the Senatc, Thc treasurcd Alunrni, Thc Staff and most imporlantly

our Students. l'ogether we are deterrnined to build strong bridgcs to create new knowledge and

innovations, produce top-notch rcscarchers and cxperts in order to build a bctter world. l'hank

you all for your continued commitmcnt, loyalty, hard work and pcaceful co-cxistencc.

avld 'f. K. Serem, Ph.D., OGW
COUNCIL CIIAIIIMAN.
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6. lll]I'olLl' OF T}IE CHIEI.' B,xll'CU'IIvE oFl'I Cl'lR

I am dclightcd to highlight thc following major achicvemcnts accomplishcd during thc ycar

cnded 30'h Jurrc 2023;

i) Studcnt Enrolmcnt and Tcaching

Chuka Univcrsity continucs to grow and carvc a niche to attract top scholars. Currcntly, thc

Univcrsity has ovcr 17,000 studcnts, spread ovcr the lour campuses in Chuka, Chogoria, Embu

and lgembc.'lhc University has graduatcd ovcr 26,000 graduates since inccption and has ovcr

240 academic programmcs cutting across ccrtificatc, diploma, bachclors, masters and doctoral

lcvcls. During the financial ycar 202212023, thc Univcrsity gradua(ed 2,815 studcnts. '['hc

increased student population has triggered business opportunities in the local community, thus

hclping transform thc economic outlook of the region.

ii) l'inancial pcrformancc

In the Irinancial Year undcr rcvicw, thc Univcrsity Managemcnt has continued with thc pursuit

for prudent financial ulilization in its bid to strcngthen the institutional capacity as per the

strategic objectivcs and corc values.'l'o cnsure high pcrformance ofour busincss proccsscs, the

Univcrsity embraced the use Governmcnt Investmcnt Management Inlormation System

(CIMIS), an onlinc intcrfacc that enablc sharing oF monthly, quarterly, annual reports and

budgets with the National trcasury and othcr stakeholders. To copc with emerging technologics,

thc Univcrsity is implcmcnting Micro Soft 365-Business Ccntral and l,ibrary Information

Inanagcment system. 1'he new tcchnologies arc expcctcd bring efficiency in our busincss

proccsses and enablc us to servc our customers bctter.

Flducation, Training, Iicscarch and outrcach

'l'hc corc busincss of the Univcrsity is provision of quality cducation and rescarch. In an

cndcavour to build rcsearch capacity, thc University has acquired state-ol-the-art scientific

equipment. 'l'he LJnivcrsity has continucd to support staff and students to conduct rescarch

through thc Intcrnal l{csearch Fund (lRF). 't'hc lJniversity also hcld its 8th International

Rcscarch Conlercncc in October 2022.
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iii) Infrnstructurc l)cvclopmcnt

Chuka Univcrsity has grown trerncndously ovcr thc ycars and thc [Jnivcrsity has continucd to

invest in projccts and progranrmcs that support our studcnts lo rcalize their acadcmic pursuits

and drcams. l'oremost in our Inveslments is research and teaching lacilitics.'fhc [Jnivcrsity has

invcstcd in state ofart rcsearch and teaching facilities and it offcrs markct oriented and drivcn

courscs.'l'his is cvidcnccd by acquisition of Ultra-modern laboratory cquipmcnt and on-going

construction of a Scierrcc and 'fechnology Itescarch l)ark and the IJltra-Modcrn Library

Complcx. In ordcr to support agricultural research and production, we have continued to cquip

and develop univcrsity farms especially thc irrigation inlrastructurc installcd at Kairini farrn.

'fo support student accommodation, the univcrsity completcd and commissioned a Modcrn

Student Hostel (Phasc l) with a capacity o1968 Studcnts.'l'he Construction ofStudcnt Malc

Hostel Phase 2, Administration/l-aw cornplex and thc Food 'l'echnology 'fuition Complex arc

still ongoing.

iv) Human Rcsourcc

'fhc University continues to invest in recruitment ofhighly qualified and cxpcrienccd staff. We

are proud of our academic excellence and thc pervasive can-do attitude of staff that turns

cnthusiasm into success and ideas into a cutting edgc practice.

In conclusion, may I convey my apprcciation and gratitude to thc university council, senate,

management and the stafffor their commitment to work and thcir timeliness and splendid cffort

that havc seen the University realizc its goal of becoming a prcmicr lJnivcrsity.

l.'inally, I would like to thank thc government, local and intcrnational donors, supplicrs and

other servicc providers for their trust and guidance and continued cooperation.

Prof. Henry M. M'lk lugu, Ph.D.
Vicc Chanccllor/Chicf Exccutivc Offi ccr
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7. STAl'llMENT OF- lrN'l'ITY'S PEIIF-OII.MANCI,l, AGAINST
PRITI)F],'tEITMINE,D OI}.II'CTIVT],S

Chuka Univcrsity has ten strategic pillars and objectivcs within its Stratcgic Plan for thc FY

201712018- 2021/2022. Thesc strategic pillars arc Academic [ixcellence; Rcsearch, Science,

'ltchnology and Innovation; llnvironrncntal Conservation and Rencwable llncrgy;

Infrastructurc and l.'acilities I)cvcloprncnt; Financial Rcsourcc Mobilization and Utilization;

Informalion Communication Tcchnology Dcvelopmcnt; Govcrnancc, [,eadership and

Managemcnt; Iluman Resourcc Managcmcnt; Student Wclfare Serviccs and Community

Outrcach and Linkages Chuka Univcrsity develops its annual work plans bascd on the above

I0 pillars. Asscssmcnt olthe Board's perlormancc against its annual work plan is done on a

quarterly basis. Chuka University achieved the pcrlormancc targets sct for thc IiY 2022/2023

period lor its l0 strategic pillars, as indicated below:

xv l

Stratcgic
l'illar/Th
cmc/Issu
cs

Objcctivc
K"y
I'crforma
ncc
Indicators Activities Achicvcmcnts

Expansio

n of
Rclcvant

Markel-
Driven

Prograrn

mcs

Design,
devclop,

implemcnt
and review

academic
programmcs

Ncw
programm

cs

Designed programmes in

linc with changing

technologics, job market

and industrial nccds

New Programmes developcd as

lollows
I Ph.D.l Mastcrs 5 Bachelors

I)rovision

of
Relevant

Quality
Ilducatio
n and
'l'raining

rmprovc

laculty
perlormance

Modernizc
learning

environmcnts

[]valuation
Modernize

d

Environm
cnt

Conduct studcnt

cvaluation rating in all
Faculties to improvc
faculty performance

lmplemcntcd a virtual
teaching and lcarning
environment

'lrained 230 teaching staff and

50 postgraduate students on c-
Learning. I 0 E-leaning modules

devclopcd. Oflcred
scholarships to 7 outstanding
graduates to pursue mastcrs

Iluild capacity for 288 lecturcrs

on review of Univcrsity
curricula to meet CB[,'I
rcquiremcnt. Organizcd a

workshop for 29 f)eans &
CODs on aligning curricula
with CUII Guidelincs.
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Rcsearch,

Scicnce,
'fechnolo

gy and

Innovatio

n

Gencration

and

Disscminatio
n of Itcscarch

Findings

Disscmina

tcd

Ilescarch

Find ings

Staff Publishcd rcscarch

findings in pccr-

rcviewcd journals

126 ncw lolcrccd articlcs
publishcd. Organized onc

annual Confcrcnces.5T post.

graduates studcnts traincd on

compctitivc rcsearch &grant
proposal writing.

Environ
mental

Conscrva

tion and

ltcncwab
Ie Encrgy

Enhancement

of
Environmcnt
al

Conservalion

Programm

cs/Projects

on

environme

ntal

conservati

on.

Ilstablish tree nurscries

and plant trecs

Ovcr 1000 trcc sccdling
plantcd

Infrastruc

ture and

Iracilities
Develop

ment

Developmcnt

of Learning

Facilities
Construct

high priority
projects

identified in

the

University
Master Plan.

100%

Progress

report

achieved

as pcr

targcts set

in the

year.

Impleme ntation of
budgeted projccts.

Developcd and

implcmcntcd a
maintcnance and

rcnovation schcdu lc

Ovcr 90Yo Progress rcport
indicates the achievcment of
the progress ofthe build ing

sincc.

construction is ongoing

Maintenance and renovation

schedule devcloped arrd

implemented

Informati
on,

Commun

ication

and
'l'echnolo

gv

Incrcase thc
numbcr of
services

offcrcd to our
stakeholders
via thc

websitc.
Utilize lcl'
in teaching
and Iearning

Incrcase

digitalizati
on

Posted conferencc
procecdings, events,

news, advertisements and

other documents

Populated the University
website with content and

make it interactivc
Purchasc teaching and

Iearning ICT equipment.

Websitc revamped

Wcb ranking improved.
230 tcaching staff and 50

postgraduate students in
Moodlc e-Lcarning
Managcmcnt System and

Moodle development
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Covcrna

nce,

[,eadcrsh

ip and

Managc

mcnt.

Adopt best

corporate
govcrnancc

practices

Performed

Activities
Constilutc University
commiltecs. Scnsitize

staff on Vision, Mission,

Core Values, policics,

Strategic l)lan, Statutes,

Servicc and

Accreditation Chartcr.

I{evicw and implcment

Univcrsity policics

Conductcd training needs

assessmcnt

Staff appraised as pcr set

targets.

Inculcatcd utilization ol
pcer mcntorship scrviccs

counscling serviccs

Strcngthened

New committcc members

appointed.

300 stalf scnsitized in various

forums within thc university

IIuman

I{esourcc

Managc

ment

Iirnploy,
Appraise and

promote

Staff.

Production of
Flolistic
Graduates

Pcrformcd
Activities

Programm

es and

projects

4 policies revicwcd
training nceds assessmcnt

conductcd

reviewed the current career

progression guidclines.

I pcrformancc appraisal &
report donc

A survcy on employcc

sat is fact ion .

Offercd two online life skills
sensitization to students during

first ycar orientation.

Sensitization on carecr choices

4 mcntorship programmes

offered in the year. Carecr

ambassadors idcntificd and

trained

Studcnt

Wellarc

Services

Commun

ity
Outrcach

and

Linkages

Engagement

in Priority
Areas in

Comrnunity
C)utreach

Projects/Pr

ogrammes

on

comrnunit

v
outrcach.

'l'hc univcrsity dcvelopcd

and implemented

community outreach

programmes

Offer improvcd plant and

livestock farming

extension and advisory
services-

200 small scale

enterpriseVtrades trained.

75 farmers traincd on

Agricultural Production and

Livestock Nutrition
Organizcd a medical camp

attracting 1,241 clients to assist

local access mcdical services
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8. CORPORATE GOVETTNANCE STATI.I,MENT

Chuka Univcrsity is cornmittcd to cxhibiting thc bcst practiccs in all aspccts of corporatc

governanceasguidedbytheUniversityCharterandthcMwongozoCodeofGovcrnancc.'['he

Mwongozo Codc was establishcd by the Govcrnmcnt to providc guidancc on el'fective

leadcrship, govcrnancc and uranagcnrent of public rcsources. 'l'hc Chartcr requircs the

University to havc thrce separate bodics, each with clearly dcfincd lunctions and

responsib ilities, to oversee and manage its activitics, as follows:

i) Thc Council

This is thc govcrning body ofthc university. 'l'he Council compriscs nine membcrs as discloscd

in pagcs 9 to ll.'l'he council is constituted taking into account requiremcnts of the scctor,

diversity of skills, age, value addition, gender, academic qualifications and expericnce

nccessary to hclp achicvc thc [Jnivcrsities goals and objcctivcs. 'fhc Council is appointcd by

the Cabinct Secretary for Education.

As the governing body of the University, the Council has a responsibility of maintaining a

sound system ofinternal conlrols that support the achievement ofpolicics, ainrs and objcctivcs,

whilst safcguarding the public and other univcrsity rcsources. 'l'he University Council is vested

with powcrs and authority by its Charter and the Univcrsities Act, 2012. ln discharging its

mandatc, the Council is guided by thc Charter to cffcctivcly fulfil its corporatc govcrnancc

responsibility towards its stakeholdcrs. In addition, it has adopted Guidclines on Corporate

Governance developed by thc Commission for Univcrsity Education.

The Univcrsity also cmbraces the Public Officcrs and llthics Act and the Mwongozo Codc for

State Corporations. The Council is also thc cxccutive governing body rcsponsible for the

academic policy and stratcgic dircction ofthc lJnivcrsity, including its external relations, and

for thc Administration of lhe Univcrsitv.

l'he Council is responsible for thc management of the Univcrsity's finances and assets, in

accordance wilh the Public Irinancial Management Act,2012 and Public I.inancial rcgulations

of20l5.

xxl
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Mcetings of thc council

'l-hc mectings ofthc council were held during thc financial ycar has tabulated in the table below:

The tcrm of service for the council expired in March 2022 and on 23'd May ZO23 lhe

Government appointed a new council. During the financial year 2022/2023, thc government

also appointed Professor I lcnry M. M'lkiugu, formerly the Dcputy Vicc Chancellor

xx

Council Mcmber
Namc

Council Mccting Datc

o8l07l
2022

22109

12022

23lOe

12022

09lL2
12022

25lot
12023

oelot
12023

02l06
12021

09/06
12023

Total

Dr. Julius T
Rotich

616

Prof.Dorcas K.
Isu sta

717

tliram M.
Kahiro

, 718

Dr.George O
Kwcdho

616

Joscphine
W.Gitonga

616

llellen K.
Mungania

616

Andrew M.
Mugambi

616

Kcnnedy
M.ontiti

616

Dr. Wahome
Rurcri.

818

Prof. David 't.
K. Serem

212

Professor Henry
M. M'lkiugu

LIL

Crispus Micheni
Ndeke

212

L,inet
Kwamboka
Maganda

212

Samuel Gacheru
Gitonga

212

Zephania
Rwanda Mbaka

2/2

Margaret
Makhungu,
Total 9 9 9 8 9

212

9 9 9
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(Adrr inistration, Financc, l)lanning and l)evclopmcnt) as thc substantivc Council Sccrctary/

Chief Exccutivc Officcr/Vice Chancellor who took ovcr lrom I'roL Dorcas. Isulsa who was in

acting capacity. Prof.Dorcas K. Isusta also proceeded on tcrnrinal lcavc aftcr hcr tcrm as Deputy

Vice Chancellor (Acadcmic, I{escarch and Studcnts Affairs) endcd. Thc council appointcd

Prof. []unice Cithac and Profcssor I'rofl Gilbcrt Mbaka Nduru as thc Acting l)cputy Vice

Chanccllors in Administration and Acadenric Divisions rcspcctively.

Council Committccs

To promote srnooth running of its affairs, certain lunctions of thc Council arc dclegated to its

committecs, which report to thc Council.

Thcsc Cornmittees include the following:

i) Finance, Farm, Dnterprise Company and Gcneral-Purpose Council Cornmittce.

ii) Audit, Governance and Risk Managemcnt Council Comrnittee.

iii) Gricvances tlandling Appcals Council Committec.

iv) FIuman Resources Managemcnt Council Committee.

v) Building, Planning and Developmcnt Committec.

vi) Sealing and Honorary Dcgrcc Council Committee.

All Comrnittees of thc Council havc an appointcd chairperson. The dccisions and

recommendations of thesc committces are lbrmally reported to the Council.

Conflicts of Intcrcsts
'fhe Council members have a statutory duty to avoid situations in which thcy have or may have

intcrcsts that conflict with those of the Council. All transactions with all pa(ics, dircctors or

their rclatcd partics are carried out at arm's length. Council rnernbers arc obligated to disclosc

to the Council any real or potential conflict of intercst, which may come to their attention

whethcr direct or indirect. During every Council meeting, an agcnda item exists which rcquires

mcmbers to make a declaration ofany conflict of intcrcst lhey may havc in the business to bc

discusscd. During thc financial year 202212023, no conflicts of intcrest arose in conduct of
Council business.

Ilcmuneration of thc Council

Thc membcrs of the council, othcr than thc Chief Iixcculive Officer, do not rcceivc a salary.

'['hey are howevcr paid a sitting allowancc for every rnecting attended at thc rate of Ksh. 20,000

per sitting. The Chairman and the Chancellor reccivcs honoraria as stipulatcd in thcir

XXIII
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appointmcnt letlcrs by the appointing authority. 'fhe committce mcmbers do not rcccivc any

rcmuneration apart from the reimbursement of expenses incurrcd whilc on thc University

dutics. During the pcriod undcr rcvicw, thc Univcrsity did not havc a Chanccllor, since no

appointment had bccn madc by thc appointing authority.

Ethics and Conduct

'l'hc Council, Management and staff arc rcquircd to conduct thcmsclvcs with Intcgrity and

profcssionalism in accordancc with lhe Chuka University Code of Conduct and Ethics. The

Codc dcfincs our clhical standards and holds us accountablc lor our business conduct'l'his is

kcy in cnsuring that we do thc right lhing and arc accountable at all timcs, whilc adhcring to

our standards and principlcs as we intcract with customcrs, communitics and other

stakcholders.

I)uring the ycar under rcvicw, Chuka University continued to cntrcnch a strong cthical conduct

through training and sensitisation of staff, corruption risk assessments and cnforcemcnt of

prevention measures. In addition, the Company has put in place various mechanisms for

rccciving complaints and making follow-ups on allegations and cascs of unethical conduct.

Objective analysis of reportcd cascs is donc and appropriatc action instituted to control and

mitigate thc risk.

(lovcrnancc Audit.

'fhc University has a committce callcd Audit, Covcrnancc and Risk Managemcnt Committcc.

'l'he committees aim is to ensure thc Univcrsity complies with all rcle vant arcas of corporatc

govcrnancc. The action points idcntified by the committec arc implemented continuously.

iD 'fhc Managcmcnt Tcam

Membcrs ofthc management team arc appointcd by thc Council through a compctitive proccss.

'l'he membcrship consists of the CIIO/Vicc Chanccllor, thc Dcputy Vice Chanccllor

(Adrn inistration, financc, Planning and Dcvclopment), Deputy Vice Chanccllor (Academics,

Rcscarch and studcnt Aflairs) Irinancc Officer, Registrar (Acadcmics) and Registrar

(Administration and Planning).
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iiD Thc Scnatc

Thrs is thc acadcmic authority of the University. It is composcd of thc Vicc - chancellor, Deputy

Vicc Chanccllors, Prrncipals and Deputy Prrncipal ofConstilucnt Collcgcs, Dcans, Directors,

Chairmcn of thc Academrc Departmcnts, two Students' I{cprcscn(ativcs, Finance Officcr,

Registrar Acadcrnic, Ilegistrar (Administratlon and Planning) and Faculty Rcprescntatives. Its

role is to discuss and approve studcnt results as wcll as students' discrpline. The Senatc rs

chaircd by thc Vicc - Chanccllor.

The Principal academic and administrativc officer of the Universrty is thc Vice Chanccllor who

has a gencral responsibility to the Council for maintaining and promoting thc cfficrency and

good order of the University.

xxv
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9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAI,YSIS

Managcmcnt's discussion and analysis (MD&A) providcs a broad ovcrvicw of the Chuka

lJnivcrsity llnancial condition as at Junc 30,2023, comparativc inlormation for thc ycar endcd

June 30, 2023 and thc significant changcs flrom thc prcvious years. Managcmcnt has prcpared

thc financial statcmcnts and relatcd note disclosurcs along with this MD&A. ]-he MD&A

should bc rcad in conjunclion with the financial statcmcnls and rclated notes of the Chuka

lJnivcrsity.

'l'he financial stalcmcnt prescntation consists of comparative Statcmcnt of Financial

pcrfornrance, statemcnt offinancial position, statcment ofchangcs in nct assets, statcments of

cash flows, and accompanying notes for the Junc 30, 2023 and 2022 financial years. Thcsc

statcmcnts providc information on the financial position of Chuka [Jnivcrsity and thc financial

aclivity and rcsults of its _opcrations during thc ycars prcscntcd.

i) Opcrational and Financial Performancc

In thc statcmcnt offinancial perfonnance, the University scll-gcnerated an amount ofkshs.559

Million as Appropriation in Aid, which was used to fund purchasc of equipmcnt, support

construclion projccts and other Univcrsity operations. 'l'hc Govcrnmcnt lurther funded the

lJnivcrsity opcrations with Kshs,l.333 llillion. During thc ycar, thc univcrsity incurred an

cxpcnditurc ol'Kshsl.894 Billion hencc rcalizing a surplus of Kshs.0.398 Million.

In our stalement of financial position, thc Nct worth of thc Univcrsity continucd to grow

rccording a nct worth of Kshs.7.869 Billion up from Kshs.7.853 Billion in the financial year

2021/2027. 'l'he performance in the last five ycars is tabulated bclow;

Description 2Ot8lZOtg zo2ol2o2L 2O2tl2022

Capital Funds

ii) Kcy projccts and invcstmcnt dccisions thc entity is planning/implcmcnting

Chuka lJnivcrsity's fivc-year strategic plan sets out thc kcy projccts and invcstment decisions

to bc rnadc in order to ensurc that it mccts its rnandatc. In its Quest to bccome Premier

Univcrsity for thc provision of quality education, training and rescarch for sustainable national

xxvt

2OL9l2O2O

2,222,883,129

2022-2023

t,995,627,819 2,2't1,648,351 2,313,648,351 2,329 ,420 ,610
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and global devclopmcnt thc Univcrsity has crnbarkcd on itrplerncntation of llvc kcy stratcgio

projects as cnvisagcd in thc rnastcr Plan.'l'hc projccts arc [JItra-Modcrn Scicncc Rcscarch I'atk,

Food 'fcchnology, Malc hostcl, Administration Illock/ t-aw school and thc [Jltra-Modern

Library. Thc Projccts are currclltly at various stages of itnplemcntation.

iii) Compliancc with statutory rcquircmcnts

'lhc university has complicd with all thc statutory rulcs and has not bccn pcnaliscd in any

inslancc. l-he Univcrsity has cnsured that all thc taxes are paid at thc right tirnc and all thc

statutory deductions deducted frorn staff salaries arc remittcd to the relevant offices in good

timc-

iv) Major llisks

Chuka tJnivcrsity was not exposed to any rnajor risk that can affcct its operation

IO. ENVIIIONMENTAL AIID SUSTAINABILITY II.EPOII'IING

Chuka Univcrsity is an acknowledged local lcadcr in social rcsponsibility issucs.'l'hc goal ol

the university is to use knowledge and resources to makc a positive and dccisive differcncc to

pcople, organisations and the community. Bclow is an Outline of the organisation's policies

and activities that prornote sustainability;

i) Sustainability Stratcgy and Profilc

Iinsuring financial sustainability is onc ofthe key objectives in our Corporate Strategic Plan.

Key initiatives to ensure financial sustainability include prudcncc utilization and managomcnt

of flnancial resourccs. 'l'he University has continucd introducing markel driven courscs in its

endeavour to cxpand revenue base and reduce over reliance on govcrnmcnt capitation. 'l'his is

in addition to mecting the economic necds. 'l-he reccntly introduccd School of Law is a classical

cxamplc of such initiatives.

ii) Environmcntal pcrformancc

Chuka Univcrsity promotes prog,rammcs that help conservc thc environmcnt in full rcalization

that communities dcpcnd on environmcnt in rnany ways. Programmes that promote

environmental conscrvation include;

xxv
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I'romoting Irrigation in arid communitics

'l-he univcrsity is constructing a watcr reservoir and irrigation system on its 500-acrc Kairini

farrn lbr arid larming dcmonstrations units and teaching blocks to hclp people in the largely

scmi-arid county bccome food sccurc.

Promoting harvcsting of solar cncrgy

'l'he Univcrsity installed 40 solar panels in Studcnts Male Llostcl to harvest solar cnergy for use

in thc student hostcls.

Soil Conscrvation
'l'he institution bought soil scanners that mcasure the soil acidity and diagnose its fcrtility and

projcct on thc expectcd crop yicld.

Environmcntal Asscssmcnts and Compliancc

In compliance with environmental regulations, thc Company conducls environrnental and

social impact asscssmcnls for all new infrastructurc projects. In addition, wc conduct

environmental audits and monitoring for cxisting projects to ensure that they conlinuc to be

cnvironmentally sustainablc

Promoting cnvironmental conscrvation and rcncwablc cncrgy through rcscarch.

Chuka Univcrsity hcld an International Research conlcrencc with major emphasis in rcsearch

on cnvironrrental conservation and rencwable encrgy. In addition, thc University offlers

rcscarch grants to promotc rcscarch in cnvironmental conservation and rencwable cncrgy.

iii) Employcc Wclfarc

'l'he university offcrs bursarics to stalf and lhcir dcpcndants to support their education in

institutions of highcr lcarning. ln addition, thc Univcrsity regularly rcviews and promotes

cmployccs. -fhc Univcrsity continucs to negotiatc with staffthrough respeclivc Union Chapter

of UASU, KUSU and KUDfllllFIA on practical ways of promoting employce welfare. During

the financial ycar, thc managcment and the unions began negotiations of lntcrnal Collcctivc

l]argaining agrccment (CI]A) lor 2017-2021 rvith aim of promoting cmploycc welfarc in and
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out ofwork place. The University has also operationalizcd General Personal Accident (GPA)

and Work Injury Ilenefits (WIBA) insurance covers to caution the employees against accidents.

iv) Market Place Practiccs

Chuka University aligned its procurement policies with the Constitution, the PFMA and

Regulations, and the Piocurement and Asset Disposal Act, 20l5.The University ensures

transparency in procurement ofgoods and services and ensures allocation of30% ofcontracts

are awarded to ACPO suppliers (Women, people with disabilities and the youth).

v) Conmunity Social Rcsponsibility/Community Engagemcnts

Chuka University's efforts stand out in the country. The University has, amongst other

activities, collaborated with stakeholders to facilitate the construction and upgrading of

community roads and water supply.

xxtx
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I I. REPORT OF THE COI]NCIL

'fhe Council submits thc report togethcr with thc auditcd financial statements for thc ycar ended

June 30,2023, which indicate the state ofthe University's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the lJniversity arc to provide directly, or in collaboration with other

institutions of higher learning, facilities for university cducation, the integration of teaching,

research and effective application of knowledge and skills to the life, work and welfare of

citizens of Kenya.

Rcsults

'l'he results ofthe entity for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out on pages I to 7 for financial

statements and pages 8 to 50 for the notes to the financial statements.

Univcrsity Council

The members of the Council who servcd during the year are shown on page ix to xi in

accordance with the Universities Act, 2012.

Auditors

l'he Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Univcrsity in accordance with

the Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015, which empowers

the Auditor Ceneral to carry out the audit ofthe University for the year ended June 30, 2023.

By Order of the nlv rsity Council

Prof. Henry 'rk rugu, Ph.D.
Vicc Chanccllor/Chicf Executivc Officcr
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I 2. STATEMENT OI' COUNCILS' RI],SPONSII]II,ITIItS

Scction 8l of the l'ublic Financc Managcment Act, 2012 and scction 14 ol the Statc

Corporations ncl, require thc Council to prcparc financial statemcnts in rcspcct of that

IJnivcrsity, which give a truc and fair view ofthe statc ofaflairs of the lJnivcrsity a1 thc cnd of

the financial yearlpcriod and the opcrating rcsults of the University for that yearlpcriod. 'l'hc

council is also required to ensure that thc Univcrsity kecps propcr accounting records which

disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ofthc Univcrsity. 'l'he Council is also

responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthc University.

'I'he Council is responsiblc for the prcparation and presentation of thc University's financial

statements, which givc a true and fair view ofthc state ofalfairs ofthc [Jnivcrsity lor and as at

the end ofthe financial ycar (period) endcd on June 30, 2023. 1'his responsibility includes: (i)

maintaining adequate financial managemcnt arrangements and cnsuring that these continue to

be effective throughout thc reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which

disclose with rcasonable accuracy at any tirnc thc financial position of thc entity; (iii)

dcsigning, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statcments, and cnsuring that they are frce from rnaterial

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe [Jnivcrsity; (v)

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates

that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Council accept rcsponsibilily for thc Univcrsity's financial statements, which havc bccn

prepared using appropriate accounting policies suppo(ed by reasonablc and prudent judgements

and estimates, in conform ity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (lPS^S),

accrual basis and in the manner required by the PFM Act,2Ol2 and the Statc Corporations Act.

Thc Council is ofthe opinion that the [Jniversity's financial slatemcnts give a true and fair view

ofthe state of University's transactions during thc financial year ended June 30, 2023, and ofthc

Univcrsity's financial position as at that date.
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The Council further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

University, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University's financial

statcments as well as the adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Council to indicate that the University will not remain

a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of thc linancial statements

'fhe University's financial statements were approved by the Board on 28rh September 2023 and

signed on its behalf by:

Prof. tlenry M. M'lkiugu, Ph.D.

Vicc Chanccllor/Chicf Executivc Offi ccr

f. David T. K. Serrem, Ph.D., OCW

Council Chairman

xxxll
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NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON CHUKA UNIVERSITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lalvfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2O12 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts
of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statemelts of Chuka University set out on
pages 1 to 49, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023

Report ofthe Auditor General on Chuka Universityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023



a
and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my oplnion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chuka University as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance
Management Acl, 2012 and the Universities Act, 2016.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Lack of Land Ownerchip Documents

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.8,411,526,705 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. This balance
includes land at Karingani/Ndagani valued at Kshs.25,000,000 which the University does
not have ownership documents. Although Management indicated that the title documents
for the parcel of land is being pursued with the relevant Ministry, the documents had not
been obtained as at 30 June, 2023.

ln the circumstances, the ownership of land valued at Kshs.25,000,000 could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Chuka University Management in
accordanec with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparative basis amount of Kshs.2,301,827,608 and Kshs.2,182,869,083
respectively, resulting to under collection of Kshs.118,958,525 or (5olo) of the budget.
Similarly, the University's approved expenditure budget was Kshs.2,301,827,608 and
actual expenditure was Kshs.2,112,845,992 resulting to under absorption of
Kshs.188,981,616 or (8%) of the budget.

Report ofthe Auditor General on Chuko Universitylor lhe year ended 30 June, 2023
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The under-funding and under-expenditure affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service deliverT to the stakeholders.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

't.0 Tangible Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.8,41 1,526,705 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. lncluded in this
balance is work in progress amount of Kshs.4,355,546,868. However, the following
observations were noted for the projects that were on going within the University,

1.1 Delayed Construction of Food Technology Tuition Complex

lncluded in the work in progress balance of Kshs.4,355,546,868 is Kshs.19,126,609 in
respect of construction of Food Technology Tuition Complex. Review of the project file
revealed that the University entered into a contract with a Company on 22 May,2017 at
a contract sum of Kshs.292,164,909 for an execution period of 104 weeks. However,
physical verification carried out in September, 2023 revealed that no works were on going
and the contractor was not on site, a clear indication that the works will not be delivered
on time.

ln the circumstances, the University may not realize value for money on the project

1.2 Delayed Construction of Administration Block

lncluded in the work in progress balance of Kshs.4,355,546,868 is Kshs.115,773,628 in
respect to construction of Administration Block. Review of the project file revealed that

Report ofthe Auditor General on Chuko Universityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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the University entered into a contract with a Company at a contract sum of
Kshs.'1,410,808,347 with a contract execution'period of tvvo-hundred and sixty (260)
weeks commencing on 19 October, 2017 and ending on 11 December, 2022. Further, it
was observed that the contract was extended to 10 August, 2023.

However, physical verification carried out in September,2023 revealed thatthe contractor
was not on site. This is an indication that the project will not be delivered on time. No
explanation was provided on why the project was still incomplete even after the last
contract extension of 10 August , 2023. Further, no explanation was provided by
Management on how and when the Administration Block will be completed and put to
intended use.

ln the circumstances, the University may not realise value for money on the incomplete
building.

1.3 Delayed Construction of Male Hostel Block - Wing B

lncluded in the work in progress balance of Kshs.4,355,546,868 is Kshs.80,423,758 in
respect of construction of Male Hostel Wing B. Review of the project file revealed that
the University entered into a contract with a Company at a sum of Kshs.559,500,000 with
a contract execution period of 208 weeks commencing on 11 June, 2019 and ending on
10 June, 2023. However, it was observed that the contract period expired on
11 June, 2023 and the contractor had not applied for extension.

Further, physical verification carried out in September, 2023 revealed that the works were
not on going and the building was approxim ately 7 3o/o complete as per the project
implementation status report. However, Management did not provide explanation on why
the works had stopped, delaying the benefits to the intended users.

ln the circumstances, Management may not realise the value for money if the project
remains incomplete.

1.4 Delayed Construction of Library Complex

lncluded in the work in progress balance of Kshs.4,355,546,868 is Kshs.314,247,802 in
respect of construction of Ultra-Modern Library. Review of the project file revealed that
the University entered into a contract with a Company at a sum of Kshs.1 ,6'10,480,481
with a contract execution period of two-hundred and sixty (260) weeks commencing on
7 February, 2022 and ending on 6 February,2027.

However, physical verification carried out in September, 2023 revealed that the works
were not on going and that the building was approximately 10% complete as per the
project implementation status. Management did not provide explanation on how they
intend to complete the project report. This is a clear indication that the works may not be
completed within the contract period thereby delaying the benefits to the intended users.
ln the circumstances, Management may not realise the value for money if the project is
not completed within the stipulated time.

Repor, ofthe Auditor Cenerql on Chuka University fot the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1(a) of the PublicAuditAct, 2015, based on the audit procedures
performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Gonclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall
governance were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Repo ofthe Auditor General on Chuka Universityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229 (7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always
detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in'all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229 (7) of the Constitution. My consideration
of the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls
that might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Repo ofthe Auditor General on Chuka Universitylor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due toifraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to
cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other mafters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

27 March,2024

cBsht-ra
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14, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFOTTMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

3OTH JUNE 2023

Rcvcnuc from Non-Exchenge Transeclions

Exchcquer Recuffcnt Grants

Othcr Rcvenuc from Non-Exchange Transactions

Sub-totel

llcvcnuc from Exchangc Trrnsrctions

Tuition and Rclatcd Incomc

Othcr lncorne from Exchangc transactions

Sub-Totrl
Totnl llcvcnuc (A)

Expcnscs

Employmcnt ExPcnscs

Council Expenses

Establishment ExPenses

Rcpairs and Maintcnancc ExPcnscs

Academic Expenses

Studcnts and Alumni ExPcnscs

Staff Wclfarc and DeveloPment Expenscs

Financ€ costs

Dcpreciation and Amortrzation

Usc of Coods and scrviccs

IncrcasdDccreasc in Provision for Doubtful Debts

Totrl Expcnditurc (B)

Surplus / Dcficit (A-B)

Chuka UniversitY

Slalemenl of Financial Performonce

I?or lhe Year Eruled June 30, 2023
Notc 7022-2023

Kshs

| ,333 ,854 ,721

|,232,275

1,33s,086,996

466,588,214

92,689,80s

559,278,019

1,894,365,01s

202t-2022
30th Junc 2022

6

't

|,390,339,490

9,271,184

12,220,896

t06,923,317
5,220,491

5,497 ,635
|,917 ,756

2r8,08 r,141

144,448,893

45,836

1.893,966,639

398,375

I ,33t,7 59,394

441,',166

1,332,201,160

709,653,889

69,t32,803
778,'186,692

2,I10,987,852

| ,37 5,897 ,120
I t,866,227

1,413,880

44,407,7 M
186,353,638

16,788,858

13,076,935

2,13't,297

22?,063,s32

209,532,9t9

96,037

2,088,634,187

22,353,665

8

9

l0

t2
l3
l4
I5

l6
t7
l8
l9
20

The notcs sct out on pagcs E to 56 form an integral part of thcse Frnancial Statemcnts.Thc Financial

Statemcnts s out pages I to 7 wcre signed on behalfof thc council bY

Prof. tlenry M M' gu, Ph.D.

Vice Chanccllor/Chicf Exccutivc Oflicer

CPA. Jo n K. Thuranira

ICPAK Member
No t5343
Financc Olficcr

Prof. David T. K Serrem, Ph.D., OGW

Council Chrirmen
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports :rnd Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd .Iunc 30, 2023,

I5. STATEMT]NT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS A'I'30'h JUNE 2023

Chuka University

Sl0lement of Financiul Posilion
As at June 30, 2023

Note 30th Junc 2023 30th Junc 2022

KshASSETS:

Currcnt Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts
Receivables from Exchange'l'ransactions
Receivables from Non-Exchange'l ransactions
Prepaymcnts

Inventory

Total

Non-Currcnt Asscts
'fangible Asscts -Property, Plant & Equipmcnt
lntangiblc Asscts - Comp Soflwarc
Biological Assets

Total
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payables from Iixchangc Transactions

Relundablc Dcposits

Total Liabilitics

Equity l'unds & Rcserycs

Capital Irunds

Accumulated Surplus

Revaluation Reserve

Total Equity and Rcscrves
Total Equity and Liabilities

Prof. tlcnry M 'lkiugu, Ph.D.

21

23

24

2J

26

228,558,081

70,445,617
\ 1'71 1\O

5,793,387

t3,480,234

324,049,577

8,411,526,705

8,559,099

r 0,823,653

8,430,909,4s7

8,754,959,034

441,225,740

444 ,360 ,'708

885,586,448

2,329,420,6t0
4,239,'7 40,388

I,300,2 I 1,588

7,869,372,s86

8,754,959,O34

2'12,7 3 t ,809
65,907 ,865

4,17 s,7 59

17,083,733

359,899,166

7,784,51'1,185

936,384

r2, t09,800
7 ,797 ,563 ,369
I,t57,462,535

I I ,016,949
293,243,634

304,260,583

2,313,648,351

4,239,342,0t3
1,300,2 r r,588

7 ,8s3,201 ,952
8,157,462,535

27

28

29

JU

3t

'fhe notes set out on p s 8 to 56 form an intcgral part of thcse I:inancial Staterncnts.Thc Irinancial
Statcments set on I to 7 were signed on bchal council by:

Vicc Chanccllor/Chicf Exccutivc Office r
CPA. John K. 'lhuranira

ICPAK.lvlembcr
No. 15343
Financc ()fficcr

David 'l'. K. Serrcm, Ph.D., OGW

Council Chairman

2
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Chuka University
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For thc YcarEnded June 30, 2023.

16, STA'TEMENT OF CTIANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OIh

JUNE 2023

Chuka UniversitY

Sldteme of Changes in Nel AsseldEquity

For lhe Yeor Ended June 30 , 2023

2021-2022
Balmcn as at 0l 107 12022

Surplus for the Year

Capital Grants

Balancc as et 30/06/2022

2022-2023

Balance as at 0l/07/2021

Surplus for the Year

Capital Grants

Balancc as at 30/06/2023

Capital Fund
Ksh

2,273,64a,357

Revaluation
Rcscrvcs - PPE

Ksh
1,300,211,588

Accumulatcd
Surplus

Ksh
4,216,9a8 348

22,3s3,66s

Total
Ksh

7,79/J,U4,248

22,353,665

40,000,000

7,8s3,2OL,9s1

Notc

32

32

40,000,000

2,313,6rU,351

2,313,648,351

ls,772,259
2,329,42O,6LO

3

1,300,211,588 4,219,142,OL3

1,300,211,588 4,239,342,O13

- 398,375

1,300,211,s88 4,219,7 40384

7,853,201,952

398,375

75,772,259

7,a69,372,586
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and F-inancial Statcments
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30,2023.

17. STATEMENT OF CASII FI,OWS FOIT TIIE YEAIT ITNDEI) 3O'h .IUNE 2023

Surplus (Deficit) from Operations
Adjustmcnts for Non-Cash ltems in thc Income
Statcmcnt:

Depreciation and n mortization Chargc for the Year

l,oss on assct disposal

Working Capital Adjustmcnts
IncrcasdDecrcase in Reccivablcs -Exchange
'l'ransactions

Increasc/dccrcase in li.eceivablcs - Non Exchange
Transactions

IncrcasdDecrcase in prepaymcnts

IncrcasdDccrease in Inventory
Increasc/Decrcasc in Payable from Exchange
Transactions

IncreasdDccrease in Rcfundable Deposits

Nct Cash Flows Uscd in Opcrating Activitics (A)

Cash flows from invcsting activitics
Acquisition of [-and

Acquisition Building
Acquisition Plant & Equipment

Acquisition of Motor Vehiclcs

Acquisition of Furniturc & Fittings

Acquisition of Computer I Iardwarc

Purchase of Library Books

Disposal procecds

Biological Asscts

Work in Progrcss

Computer Soft ware Acquircd

Nct Cash Flows Uscd in Invcsting Activities (B)

Cash FIows from Financing Activitics
Capital Fund

Nct Cash Flows used in Financing Activitics (C )

4

Chuku Universily
Cash Flow Slotemenl

For the Period Ended June 30, 2023
2022-2023

Notc
398,37 5

l8 2r8,081,14r

3,945
218,483,462

23 (4,s37,7s2) (9,s07,704)

24

25

26

30

3l

(s,772,259)

(t ,6t7,628)
3,603,499

430,208,791

t5t,t t7 ,074
791,485,t87

(s,58s,8s2)

(689, r40)

(734,774)

I ,286,147
(825,9r9,788)

(8,5s9,099)
(851,431, r 74)

2O2Ll2022

Kshs
22,3s3,665

227,063,532

249,4t7,197

3,69 t ,319
(5,632,04s)

(t t8,371,746)

I19,597,02t

(r 1,123,86s)

(r3,940,303)

(293,87s)

I ,096,250
(1,078,749,224)

27

27

27

27

27

27

29

33

34

32

(t t,262,391\ (43, t89,769)

(t ,146,200,786)

1s,712,259 40,000,000

15,172,259 40,000,000
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Chuka University
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcments
For the Year Ended June 30' 2023.

Nct tncrcasc(Dccrcasc) in Cash and Cash

Equivtlcnts(A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents Bal B/F

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts C/F

21

2l

(44,173,728)

272,731,809

228,ss8,08t

(986,603,765)

1,259,335,574

272,731,809

The notes set out on pages 8 to 56 form an integral part of lhese Financial Statements.The Financial

Statemenls sct out on pages I to 7 were signed on behalfofthe council by

Prof. Henry M. M'lkiugu, Ph.D.

Vice Chancellor/Chicf Excculivc Offi ccr

CPA. John K. Thurani

ICPAK Member
No.15343
Finance OITIccr

David T. K. Serrem, Ph.D., OGW

Council Cheirman

5
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Chuka University
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023.

18. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AIID ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30th JUNE 2023

6

Chuka Universi
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

For the Period Ended June 30,2023

Original
Budget Adiustments Final Budget

Actual on
Comparable

Basis

Performance
Difference

2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 202?-2023 Variance
INCOME Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Note
GOK Recunent Capitation 1,333,854,721 1,333,854,721 1,333,854.72t 100
GOK Development Capltatlon 15,772,2s9 15,772,259 15,772,259 100
A-l-A / Internally Generated Funds 679,468,8t9 679,468,819 560,510,294 (r 18,9s8,525) 82 I
Committed Savings 272,731,809 272,731,809 272,731,809 100
Total Revenue (A) 2,301,827,608 2,30r,827,608 2,r82,869,083 (118,9s8,525) 95

Expenses

Employment Expenses 1,504,609, 190 1,504,609,190 1,390,339,490 lL4,269,700 92
Council Expenses I 0,087,918 r 0,087,918 9,27 t,184 816,734 92
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 12,375,000 12,375,000 t2,220,896 154, 104 99
Academic Expenses I 17,700,000 I17,700,000 t06,923,3t7 t0,776,683 9t
Students and Alumni Expenses 5,470,000 5,470,000 5,220,491 249,s09 95
Staff Welfare and Development 5,990,000 5,990,000 5,497,635 492,365 92
Finance Costs 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,917,7 56 82,244 96
Use ofgoods and services 174,685,500 174,685,500 l5 8,663,0 t 5 16,022,485 91
Purchase of Plant Property and Equipment 19,475,000 19,475,000 18,272.157 t,202,843 94

Chu|a Uniuetsi|' is lSO 9001:2015 C.ttiied l,tspiti,rg Enfio ncntnl S stli,tnbitiry fo. Bctet Lifc



Capital Projects 449,435,000 449,435,000 404,520,051 44,914,949 90

Total Expenditure (B) 2,301,827,608 2,301,827,608 2,1r2,845,992 188,98r,6r6 92

Budget Surplus/Deficit (A-B) 70,023,091 70,023,091

Chuka University
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023.

Reconciliation of Budget Surplus and Surplus as Per the Statement of Financial Performance

Note l: A-l-A / Internally Generated Funds

The was a reduction in student population due to a graduation of2022 module two class and reduction in Government sPonsored students placed at Chuka

University.

7

70,023 091Su lus as per the Statement of com arison of Bud t and Actual Amounts

Add
78,272,157Purchase of Prope , Plant and Equipment

404,520,051ment for Capital ProPa ects
2 2L3,799farm Ex enses under IGU
1,829,055Medical Ex enses under IGU

70,L7L,267Cateri Ex nses
437,005,330

Less
272,731,809Savin s Committed

L5,772,259GOK Development Ca ltatlo n
2ta,ogL,t47Dep reciation and Amortization

45,836less rovrston
506,631,04s

398,375Surplus as r the Statement of Financial Performance
398,375

Chukd Uni,ersib,ls ISO9001:2015 C. Acd......tnspirtug E lironnrc tol Sus,ninnbilitt lo. Retter LiIe



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statements
For thc Ycar llndcd Junc 30, 2023.

I9. NOTES TO'IIIE FINANCIAL S'I'ATI'MI.]NTS

l. Gcncral Information

Chuka Univcrsity is a public univcrsity cstablished in 201 3, undcr the Universities Act No. 42

of20l2. Thc Public Financial Management Act 2012, and thc Public lrinancial Managemcnt

Rcgulations 2015, governs the financial managemcnt ofChuka University. Chuka (Jnivcrsity

is wholly owncd by the Covernment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kcnya. 'l'hc University's

principal activity is to providc directly, or in collaboration with other institutions of higher

lcarning, facilities for university cducation, thc intcgration ofteaching, rcscarch and effbctive

application ofknowledgc and skills to the life, work and welfarc ofcitizens ofKcnya.

2. Statcmcnt of Compliance and Basis of I'reparation

Chuka University financial statcments have been prepared on a historical cost basis cxcept lor

the measurement at rc-valued amounts of certain itcms of propcrty, plant and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, irnpaircd asscts at their cstimated

recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their prescnt valuc. Thc

prcparation of financial statements in conformity with Intcrnational Public Scctor Accounting

Standards (IPSAS) allows thc use of estimatcs and assumptions. It also requircs managemcnt

to exercisc judgement in thc proccss ofapplying the entity's accounting policies. The financial

statemcnts have bcen prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and

reporting currency of the University.
'l'he financial statements have been prepared in accordance with thc PIrM Act 2012, and PFM

Regulation Act 2015, the Statc Corporations Act and International Public Scctor Accounting

Standards (IPSAS). 1-he accounting policies adopted have bccn consistently applied to all the

ycars prcscnted.

8
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
F-or thc Ycar t)ndcd Junc 30' 2023.

3. Adoption ofNcw and Ilcviscd Standards

i. Ncw and amcnded standards and interpretations in issue effectivc in thc ycar cnded 30

Junc 2022.

u

II)SASB dcferrcd the application date of standards from I't January 2022 owing to

Covid 19. 'l'his was done to provide cntitie s with timc to eflectively apply thc standards.

'l'hc dcfcrral was sct for l't Jatuary 2023.

New ond tmentled starulanls and inlerpretalions in issue but nol let effeclive in the

year erulel 30 June 2022.

9

Effcctive datc and impact:Standard

Applicablc: l"t January 2023:

'l'hc objectivc of IPSAS 4l is to cstablish principlcs for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

uscful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of

(he amounts, timing and uncertainty ofan Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides uscrs of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers thc charactcristics of thc asset's

cash flows and the objectivc for which thc asset is hcld;

. Applying a singlc forward-looking expected credit loss model

that is applicablc to all financial instruments subject to impairment

tcsting; and

. Applying an improvcd hedgc accounting model that broadcns

the hedging arrangemcnts in scopc of thc guidance. The model

devclops a strong link bctween an Entity's risk managcmcnt

slralcgies and thc accounting treatmcnt for instrumenls held as

part ofthe risk managcmcnt stratcgy.

II'SAS 4I:

Financial

Instruments

Chu^t U,tiwtsttt is ISOg00l:2015 C.dficd......htsli.i 8 t)tri., tutttktl Sn \ttti'nlilit-t ,'r tttttu Iili



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd.Iunc 30,2023.

Standard ElTcctivc datc and impact:

II'SAS 42:

Social

Bencfits

Applicablc: 1"r .Ianuary 2023

'l'he objcctive of this Standard is 1o improvc the rclevance, laithful

rcprcscntativcncss and comparability of the inforrnation that a reporting

Entity providcs in its financial statcrnents about social benefits. Thc

information providcd should hclp users of the financial statemcnts and

gcneral-purposc fi nancial rcports asscss:

(a)'l'hc nature ofsuch social bencfits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social bcnefit schemes; and

(c) 'fhe impact of such social bcncfits providcd on thc llntity's financial

pcrformance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments

to Other

IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I,

Irinancial

Instrumcnts

Applicablc: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance rclated to the

componcnts of borrowing costs which wcre inadvcrtently omittcd

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, rcgarding illustrative cxamples on

hedging and crcdit risk which were inadvcrtently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issucd.

c) Amendmcnts to IPSAS 30, to update thc guidancc for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omittcd whcn IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendrnents to IPSAS 33, to updatc thc guidance on classifying financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were

inadvertently omitted when IPS^ S 4l was issucd.

Other

improvements

to IPSAS

Applicable ln January 2023

. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Governmenl Sector.

Amendments to refer to thc latcst Systcm of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

c IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social sccurity benefits as it is no longer

dcfincd in IPSAS.

l0
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statements
For thc Ycar Endcd ,Iunc 30' 2023'

Standard Effcctivc datc and impact:

IPSAS 43

o II'SAS 29: Financial instrumcnts: l{ccognition and Mcasurcmcnt

Slandard no longer includcd in lhc 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

supcrscdcd by lI'SAS 4l which is applicablc from I"tJanuary 2023.

Applicfile I't Jonuary 2025

l'he standard scts out thc principles for thc rccognition, mcasurcment,

presentation, and disclosure of lcascs. 'lhe objcctivc is to ensurc that

lcssecs and lessors providc relcvant information in a manner that

failhfully rcprescnts those transactions. 'l'his information givcs a basis for

users of financial statements to assess thc effcct that leases have on the

financial position, financial pcrlormance and cash flows ofan Entity.

'l'hc new standard rcquircs cnlitics to rccognise, mcasurc and prescnt

information on right o[usc assets and lcasc liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Asscts I'lcld

lor Sale and

Discontinued

Opcrations

Applicable Id Junuary 2025

'lhe Standard rcquires,

n sscts that mcct the critcria to be classified as held for sale to bc measurcd

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value lcss costs to sell and the

deprcciation ofsuch assets to ccase and:

Asscts that meet thc criteria to be classified as held for sale to bc prescnted

scparately in tho statemcnt ol financial position and thc results of

discontinued opcrations to be prescntcd separately in the stalemcnt of

financial performance.

iii. Early arloption of standards

Chuka Univcrsity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year cnded

2022/2023

4. SUMMAIIY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Ilevcnuc rccognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fccs, taxcs and fines
'fhe entity recognizes revcnucs from lecs, taxcs and fines when the evenl occurs

and the assct recognition criteria are met. 'fo thc cxtent that lhcrc is a related

condition attachcd that would givc risc to a liability to repay thc amount,

Gutn Uninrsil'is tSO 9001:2015 Ce i.liel......ht\litittlt l:-'tt'i.ou t.,ttttl su 
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
I'or thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30,2023.

dcfcrred irrcome is rccognizcd instead ofrevcnuc. Other non-exchange revenucs

are rccognizcd whcn it is probablc that the luturc economic benefits or servicc

potcntial associated wilh thc assct will flow lo lhc cntity and the lair valuc of

thc assct can bc rrcasurcd rcliably.

ii)

Transfers from othcr govcrnmcnt cntities
llevenues from non-cxchange transactions with othcr govcrnment cntities arc

mcasured at lair valuc and recognized on obtaining control of the assct (cash,

goods, serviccs and property) if thc translcr is lrcc fronr conditions and it is

probable that the cconomic bcnefits or service potcntial related to thc asset will

flow to thc cntity and can be mcasured rcliably. Recurrent grants are rccognized

in the statement of comprehcnsive incomc. Development/capital grants arc

rccognized in thc statcmcnt of financial position and realiscd in lhc slatcmcnt ol
comprehensive income over thc uscful Iilc of the assets that has becn acquircd

using such funds

Rcvcnuc from cxchangc transactions

Ilcndcring of scrviccs
Thc entity recognizes revenue lrom rendcring ofscrviccs by rclerence to the stagc

of completion when thc outcomc ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The

stage of completion is measured by refercnce to labour hours incurred to date as

a pcrcentagc oftotal estimatcd labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be mcasured reliably, revenue is recognized

only to the extent that thc expenscs incurrcd are recoverablc.

Sale of gootls
Revcnue from the sale of goods is recognized whcn the significant risks and

rewards of ownership have bccn transfcrrcd to thc buyer, usually on dclivery of
thc goods and whcn thc amount of revcnuc can be measured reliably and it is

probable that lhe economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to thc entity.

t2
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Annual lleports and Financial Statcments
For thc Ycar Endcd .Iunc 30,2023.

Intcrcst incomc
lnterest incomc is accrued using the effectivc yicld mcthod.'l'he effective yield

discounls estimatcd fulure cash rcccipts through thc cxpccted liflc ofthc financial

assct to thal assct's nct carrying amount.'l'hc method applics this yicld to thc

principal outslanding to dctcrminc intercst income cach period.

Dividcnds
I)ividcnds or similar distributions must bc recognized when thc sharcholdcr's or

thc cntity's right to rcccivc paymcnts is cstablishcd.

Rcntal incomc
Rcntal incomc arising from opcrating lcases on invcstmcnt propcrties is accounted

for on a straight-linc basis ovcr thc leasc tcrms and inoludcd in rcvenuc.

b) lludgct information

Chuka University budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in thc financial statcments. Thc financial statcmcnts are

prcparcd on accrual basis using a classification bascd on thc naturc ofexpenses in the

statemcnt of financial pcrformancc, whcrcas thc budgct is preparcd on a cash basis.

'fhe amounts in the financial statemcnts were recast from the accrual basis to the cash

basis and reclassificd by prcsentation to be on thc samc basis as thc approved budgct.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparablc basis to thc

approved budget, is thcn prcsented in th€ statemenl of comparison of budget and

actual amounts.

In addition to thc Ilasis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statcments

arc also made for differcnccs in the formats and classification schcmes adopted for

the presentation ofthe financial statements and the approvcd budget.

A statcmcnt to rcconcilc thc actual amounts on a comparable basis includcd in the

statcmcnt of comparison of budgct and actual amounts and the actuals as per the

statcmcnt of financial performance has bcen prcscnted under page 6 ofthesc financial

statcmcnts
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c) Taxcs

Currenl income tax

Current incomc tax asscts and Iiabilities for thc current pcriod arc rncasured at thc

amount expected to bc recovered from or paid to thc taxation authoritics.'l'he tax ratcs

and 1ax laws used to compute thc amount arc those that arc cnacted or substantivcly

enactcd, at the rcporting datc in the area where the Entity operates and generatcs

taxablc income.

Current income tax relating to itcms rccognizcd dircctly in nct assets is rccognized in

net assets and not in thc statemcnt offinancial performance. Managemcnt pcriodically

evaluatcs positions taken in the tax returns with respcct to situations in which

applicable tax regulations arc subject to interpretation and cstablishcs provisions

wherc appropriate.

Chuka University is a public institution of highcr learning, established under the

Universities Act No. 42 of 2012. Ily the nature of its cstablishment and operations,

Chuka University is a public sntity that is not subject to income tax.'l'hc (Jniversity

does not engage in any unrelated trade or business. Therefore, no incomc laxes have

been reported in the University's financial stalemenls. Accordingly, no provision for

incomc taxes is requ ired.

Delerred lax

Defcrred tax is provided using the Iiability mcthod on temporary diffcrcnces betwecn

the tax bases ofassets and liabilitics and thcir carrying arnounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Defcrred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differenccs, exccpt in

respcct of taxablc tcmporary diffcrcnces associatcd with invcstments in controllcd

entities, associatcs and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of thc rcversal of

the temporary diffcrcnces can be controlled and it is probablc that the tcmporary

differences will not rcverse in the forcseeable future.

Defcrrcd tax assets are recognizcd lor all deductible tcmporary diffcrcnccs, the carry

forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferrcd tax assets are

T4
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rccognized to thc extcnt that it is probablc that taxable profit will bc availablc against

which thc deductible tcmporary diffcrenccs, and thc carry forward of unuscd tax

credits and unused tax losses can bc utilized, cxcept in rcspect oldeductiblc temporary

diffcrcnces associated with invcstmcnts in controlled entitics, associatcs and interests

in joint ventures, dclerred tax asscts arc rccognized only to the cxlcnl that it is

probablc (hat thc tcmporary differcnces will revcrsc in the lorcsccablc lulure and

taxable profit will bc available against which thc temporary diffcrenccs can bc

ulilized.

'lhc carrying amount of dcferrcd tax asscts is reviewcd at cach reporting date and

reduccd to thc cxtcnt that it is no longer probablc that sufllcient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part oflhe defcrrcd tax asset to bc utilized. Unrccognized

defcrred tax assets are re-assesscd at cach rcporting datc and are recognizcd to thc

cxtent that it has bccomc probable that luture laxable profits will allow the deferred

tax asset to be recovered.

Deferrcd tax asscts and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that arc cxpccted to

apply in thc ycar when the asset is realized or the liability is sctlled, bascd on tax ratcs

(and tax laws) that have been cnactcd or substantively enactcd at the reporting date.

Dclcrred tax relating to items rccognized outside surplus or deficit is recognizcd

outsidc surplus or deficit. Defcrrcd tax itcms arc recognizcd in corrclation to the

undcrlying transaction in net asscts.

Defbrred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilitics arc offset if a lcgally enforceable right

exists to set offcurrcnt tax assets against currcnt incomc tax liabilities and the dcfcrrcd

taxes rclatc to the samc taxable entity and thc samc taxation authorily.

Sales lax

Expenses and assets are rccognized nct oflhc amount ofsales tax, except:

i) Whcn the salcs tax incurred on a purchase of assets or scrvices is not recoverablc

from lhc taxation authority, in which casc, thc sales tax is recognizcd as part ofthe

cost ofacquisition ofthc assct or as parl ofthe expensc item, as applicablc

ii) Whcn receivables and payablcs are stated with the amount olsales tax included
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'l'hc nct arnount of salcs tax rccoverablc from, or payablc 1rl, thc taxation authority

is includcd as part of receivablcs or payables in thc statemcnt of financial position.

d) Invcstmcnt propcrty

Invcstmcnt propertics arc rlcasurcd initially at cost, including transaction costs.'l'hc

carrying amount includes thc replacement cost of components of an cxisling

invcstment property at thc tirnc that cost is incurrcd ifthc rccognition criteria are met

and excludcs thc costs ofday{o-day maintcnancc olan invcstrncnt propcrty.

Invcstmcnt propcrty acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its

fair valuc at the datc of acquisition. Subscqucnt to initial rccognition, invcstrnent

propertics arc nreasured using thc cost model and are dcprccialcd ovcr a 3O-ycar

pcriod.

Invcstment properties are derecognized eithcr whcn they have been disposed of or

when thc invcstmcnt property is pcrmancntly withdrawn from usc and no future

economic benefit or scrvice potcntial is expccted lrom its disposal. 'fhe difference

bctween the net disposal procceds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recognizcd

in thc surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. 'fransfers arc made to or from

invcstment property only when there is a changc in usc.

c) l'roperty, plant and cquipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includcs expenditure that is directly attributable to thc

acquisition ofthe items. When significant parts ofpropcrty, plant and cquipmcnt are

required to be rcplaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parls as individual

assets with specific useful lives and depreciates thcrn accordingly.

Likewise, whcn a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying

amount of thc plant and equiprrent as a rcplaccmcnt if thc rccognition critcria arc

satisfied.

All other repair and maintenance costs are rccognized in surplus or deficit as incurrcd.

Wherc an assct is acquired in a non-exchangc transaction for nil or nonrinal
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considcration thc assct is initially mcasured at its lair valuc. University land is

lrcehold propcrty and no1 subjcctcd lo amortization. Dcprcciation on othcr propc(y

is charged so as to write offthc valuc ofthc asscts during thcir cstimatcd uscful life,

using straight linc mcthod.

Asscts are subjectcd to a lull year's depreciation and amortization except thosc

acquircd within the last threc months of the ycar. A gain or loss resulting from thc

disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment arises where proceeds from disposal dilfer

from its carrying amount. Those capital gains or losscs arc rccognized in the statcment

of fi nancial pcrformance.

'l'he annual ratcs arc:

Buildings 2.5%

Machinery and Equipmcnt LOYo

Furniture and Fittings l2.5Yo

Motor Vehicles 25%

Computer & Computer peripherals 30%

Library l]ooks ZlVo

0 Leascs
I.inance lcascs arc lcases thal transfcr substanlially all of thc risks and benefits

incidental to owncrship ofthe leascd itcm to the Entity. Assets hcld under a finance

lease arc capitalizcd at lhc commencement of the lcase at the fair value of the leased

propcrty or, if lower, at the prcsent value ofthe future minimum lease payments.'lhe

tintity also rccognizcs thc associated lcasc liability at the inccption ofthe lease.'l'he

liability rccognizcd is mcasured as lhe prcscnt value of thc future minimum lcasc

payments at initial recogn ition.

Subscquent to initial rccognition, Iease payments arc apportioned betwcen financc

chargcs and reduction ofthc lcase liability so as to achicve a constant rate of interest

on the rcmaining balancc of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as financc

costs in surplus or deficit.
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An asset held undcr a finance lcasc is deprcciatcd ovcr l.hc usclul life ofthc assct.

I-lowcvcr, if thcrc is no rcasonable ccrtainty that the llntity will obtain ownership of

thc assct by the end of the leasc tcrm, the asset is deprcciatcd ovcr the shorter of thc

cstimated useful life of the assct and thc leasc tcrm.

Opcrating leases are lcases that do not translcr substantially all the risks and bcncfits

incidcntal to ownership ofthe lcased itcm 10 thc Entity. Opcrating lease paymcnts arc

recognizcd as an opcrating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis ovcr

the lcasc tcrm.

g) Intangiblc asscts

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. Thc cost of

intangible assets acquircd in a non-exchange lransaction is thcir lair valuc at the datc

ofthe exchangc. Following initial rccognition, intangible asscts are carried at cost lcss

any accumulated arnortization and accumulated impairmcnt losses. Internally

generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not

capitalized and expcnditure is reflcctcd in surplus or dcficit in the period in which the

expenditure is incurrcd. 'l'hc useful lifc of thc intangible asscts is assesscd as cithcr

finite or indefinite. Computer software is amortized on straight linc basis at the rate

of 30%o.

h) Rcscarch and dcvclopmcnt costs
'fhe lln(ity expenses research costs as incurrcd. Development costs on an individual

projcct are recognizcd as intangible asscts when thc Entity can dcmonstrate:

) 'l'he technical feasibility of completing the assct so that the assct will be

available for usc or sale

F lts intention to complele and ils ability to use or sell tho assct

) Ilow the asset will gcnerate futurc cconomic benefits or scrvicc potential

F 'l-he availability ofresources to complctc the asset

! Thc ability to measure rcliably the expcnditure during dcvclopment.

Following initial rccognition of an asset, thc asset is carricd at cost lcss any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
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Arnortization of the asset begins when dcvclopment is complete and the assct is

available for usc. It is amortized ovcr thc period of expcctcd future benefit. During

thc pcriod of dcvclopmcnt, thc assct is tcstcd for impairment annually with any

impairrncnt losscs rccognizcd imrnediatcly in surplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstrumcnts

a) Finoncial assels

I nil ial recognil io n a n d meas ure menl

[:inancial assets within thc scope of Il'SAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition

and Measurement arc classified as financial assets at fair valuc through surplus or

deficit, loans and rcceivables, heldto-maturity investments or available-for-sale

financial assets, as appropriate. Chuka University dctermincs the classification of

its financial asscts at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

[-oans and reccivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable paymcnts that are not quoted in an activc market. Aftcr initial

mcasurement, such financial assels arc subscqucntly mcasured at amortizcd cost

using the effcctrvc intcrest method, less impairment. Amortizcd cost is calculated

by taking into account any discount or prcmium on acquisition and fees or costs

that are an intcgral part of thc cffective interest ratc. Losses arising lrom

impairment are rccognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-to-malwity

Non-derivativc financial assets with fixed or dcterminablc payments and fixed

maturities are classificd as held to maturity when thc Entity has the positive

intention and ability to hold it to maturity.

After initial mcasurcment, held{o-maturity invcstmcnts are measured at

amortized cost using the cffective intcrest mcthod, lcss impairrncnt.
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Arnortizcd cost is calculatcd by taking inlo accounl any discount or prcmium on

acquisition and fccs or costs that arc an intcgral part ol'thc cflectivc intcrest ratc.

'l'he losscs arising lrotn impairment arc rccognized in surpltts or deflcit.

Impu i rmenl oJ Ji n anc i a I u ssels

'l'he Dntity assesscs at cach reporting date whether thcre is objective cvidcncc that

a financial asset or an cntity of financial asscts is impaired. A financial assct or

cntity offinancial asscts is deemed to bc impaired il, and only if, there is objcctivc

evidence of impairrncnt as a result of one or morc cvcnts that has occurred after

the initial rccognition ofthc assct (an incurrcd 'loss cvent') and that loss event has

an impact on (he cstimated future cash flows of thc financial assct or thc cntity of

financial assets that can be rcliably cstimatcd. Evidence of impairmcnt may

includc thc following ind icators:

) The debtors or entity of dcbtors arc expericncing significant financial
difficulty

) Dcfault or delinquency in interest or principal paymcnts

F 'l'hc probability that debtors will cnter bankruptcy or other financial

rcorganization

! Observablc data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash

flows (e.g. changes in arrcars or economic conditions that correlate with

de laults).

b) Financial Iiabililies

I nit ial recogn il ion and meas ure menl

Financial liabilities within thc scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial

liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as

appropriate. Thc Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at

initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of

loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Lortns and bonowing

Aftcr initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the elfective interest method.Gains and losscs
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arc rccognizcd in surplus or deficit when lhe liabilitics arc derccognized as wcll

as through the ellective intercst method amortization proccss.

Amortizcd cost is calculatcd by taking into account any discount or prcmium on

acquisition and fccs or costs that are an intcgral part ofthc cffcctivc intcrest ratc.

j) Invcntorics

lnventory is mcasurcd at cost upon initial rccognition. 'l-o thc extent thal inventory

was rcccivcd through non-cxchange transactions (for no cost or lor a nominal cost),

the cost oflhe inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its prescnt location and conditions arc

accounted for, as follows:

F Raw materials: purchase cost using thc wcighted average cost mcthod

) F'inished goods and work in progress: cost of direct matcrials and labor and a

proportion of manufacluring overheads based on thc normal opcrating capacity,

but excluding borrowing costs

Aftcr initial recognition, invcntory is measurcd at the lowcr ofcost and net realizable

value. l lowcvcr, to the extent that a class of inventory is d istributcd or deploycd at no

chargc or for a nominal charge, that class of invenlory is mcasured at thc lower of

cost and current replaccment cost.

Nct rcalizable valuc is the cstimated selling pricc in the ordinary coursc ofoperations,

less thc estimated costs of completion and thc cstimated costs necessary to make the

sale, exchange, or distribution.

Inventories arc recognizcd as an expcnse whcn dcploycd for utilization or

consumption in thc ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Entity.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a result of a past cvcnl, it is probable that an outflow of rcsources
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ernbodying econonric bcnefits or servicc potcntial will bc rcqr.rircd to scttlc thc

obligation and a reliable estimatc can be rnadc ofthc anrount ofthe obligation.

Where thc llntity expccts sonrc or all of a provision to be rcimburscd, lor examplc,

undcr an insurance contract, thc reimbursernent is rccognizcd as a scparate assct only

whcn the reimbursement is virtually ccrtain.

'I'he cxpense rclating to any provision is prcscntcd in thc statemcnt of financial

pcrformance net of any rcimbursemcnt.

l) Contingentliabilitics

The Entity does not rccognize a contingent liability, but discloscs details of any

contingencies in the notcs to the financial statements, unlcss the possibility o1'an

outflow of resourccs embodying cconomic bcncfits or service potcntial is rcmote.

m) Contingent Asscts

'lhe Entity does not recognizc a contingent asset, but discloscs details ofa possible

assct whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of onc or

more uncertain futurc events not wholly within thc control ofthe Entity in the notes

to the financial statcments. Contingent asscts arc asscsscd continually to cnsurc that

developments are appropriately reflected in the financial stalemcnts. If it has become

virtually certain that an inflow of economic bcncfits or service potential will arise and

the asset's valuc can be measured rcliably, thc assct and the related rcvenue arc

recognized in the financial statements ofthc period in which the change occurs.

n) Changcs in accounting policics and cstimatcs
1-he Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy rctrospcctivcly. 'fhe

effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if rctrospective

application is irnpractical.
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o) f,mploycc bcncfits

Ilctircmcnt bcncfit plans

'lhc Entity provides retircmcnt bcncfits lor its cmployees and dircctors. Dcfined

contribution plans are post-cmployment benefit plans under which an cnlity pays

fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund), and will havc no legal or

constructivc obligation to pay lurther contributions ifthe fund docs not hold sufficient

asscts to pay all employec benefits rclating to employce scrvicc in the currcnt and

prior pcriods. 'fhe contributions to fund obligations for the paymcnt of rctirement

bcncfits are chargcd against income in thc ycar in which thcy become payable.

Dcfincd bcncfit plans arc posGemploymcnt bcncfit plans othcr than dcfined-

contribution plans.'l'hc dcfine benefit [unds are actuarially valucd tri-annually on the

projccted unit credit method basis. Dcficits identified arc rccovcrcd through lump sum

paymcnts or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating

cmploycrs. 'fhc contributions and lump sum paymcnts rcduce the post-cmploym€nt

bcncfit obligation.

After Unive rsity inherited the former Eastern Campus of l]gcrton University, the staff

optcd to remain in the Egerton University Pension Scheme. The scheme is lunded by

contributions bascd on the basic salary lrom both cmployccs and employcr at a rate

of l0% and 20oZ respcctivcly. 'l'hc lJniversity also contributes to the statutory

National Social Sccurity Fund (N.S.S.l:.). l'his is a defincd contribution schcme

registered undcr N.S.S.l'. Act. The Univcrsity's obligations undcr this scheme arc

limitcd to spccific contributions legislated from time to timc and currently limitcd to

a maximum of Ksh 200.00 pcr cmployce per monlh, whilc the cmploycr contributcs

Ksh 200.00 per monlh.

p) I'orcign currcncy trrnsactions

'l-ransactions in foreign currencies arc initially accounted lor at the ruling rate of

exchange on the date of the transaction. 'l'rade creditors or dcbtors denominated in

loreign currency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting datc by

applying the exchangc rate on that datc.
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Iixchange differcnccs arising l'ronr the settlemcnt of creditors, or lrom thc reporting

of creditors at ratcs diffcrent lrorn those at which they wcre initially rccordcd during

thc pcriod, are rccognizcd as incomc or cxpcnscs in thc period in which thcy arisc.

q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualilying assets as part ofpropcrty, plant and

equipment. Such borrowing costs arc capitalizad over thc pcriod during which the

assct is being acquired or constructcd and borrowings have bccn incurred.

Capitalization ceases whcn construction of thc asset is complete. I"urther borrowing

costs are charged to the statemcnt of financial perlormance.

r) Rclatcd partics

Thc Entity regards a relatcd party as a person or an entity with thc ability to exert

control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influcncc ovcr the Entity, or

vicc vcrsa. Members ofkcy rnanagemcnt arc regarded as related partics and comprise

the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

s) Scrvice concession arrangcmcnts

't'he Entity analyses all aspects of service conccssion arrangements that it enters into

in detcrmining the appropriatc accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In

particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangemcnt, thc Entity

recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the

opcrator must provide togcthcr with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at

what price. In the case of asscts other than 'wholc-of-life' assets, it controls, through

ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant rcsidual interest in

the asset at the end ofthc arrangcment. Any assets so recognized are mcasured at their

lair valuc.'fo the extcnt that an asset has been recognized, thc Dntity also rccognizcs

a corrcsponding liability, adjustcd by a cash considcration paid or reccived.
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t) Cash and cash equivalcnts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term

dcposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of thrcc

monlhs or less, which arc rcadily convcrtible to known amounts of cash and arc

subjcct to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account balanccs includc

amounts held at thc Ccntral []ank of Kcnya and at various commcrcial banks at the

end of the financial ycar.

u) Comparativc figurcs

Whcrc neccssary comparalive figures for the previous financial ycar havc becn

amcndcd or reconfigured to conform to the rcquircd changes in prcscntation.

v) Subscqucnt cvcnts

'l'hcrc have been no cvcnts subsequcnt to thc financial ycar end with a significant

impact on the financial slatcmcnts for the ycar cndcd June30,2022.

5) SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY
'l'he preparation of thc Entity's financial statcmcnts in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that alfect the reported

amounts of rcvenues, cxpenscs, assets and liabilities, and the disclosurc of contingent

liabilities, at the end of thc reporting pcriod. llowever, uncertainty about thcse

assumptions and estimates could rcsult in outcomes that require a matcrial adjustment to

thc carrying amount of, the assct or liability aflccted in futurc pcriods. State all

judgcmcnts, estimatcs and assurnptions madc: e.g.

Estimatcs and assumptions

'fhc kcy assumptions conccrning the luturc and othcr key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting datc, that have a significant risk of causing a matcrial

adjustmcnt to thc carrying amounls ofassets and liabilities within thc ncxt financial year,
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arc dcscribcd bclow. 'l'hc [intity based its assumptions and cstitnatcs on parameters

availablc whcn the consolidatcd linancial statemcnts werc prcparcd.

Flowcver, existing circurnstanccs and assumptions aboul luturc dcvcloprncnts rray

change duc to market changes or circumstances arising bcyond the control of the Entity.

Such changcs are reflectcd in the assumptions whcn they occur. IPSAS I . 140

Uscful lives and rcsidual values

Thc uselul livcs and residual valucs ofassets arc asscssed using thc following indicators

to inform potential luturc use and value from disposal:

) The condition ofthc asset based on thc assessment ofcxpcrts cmployed by the Entity

> Thc nature olthc asset, its susccptibility and adaptability to changcs in tcchnology

and proccsses

) 'Ihe nature ofthe processes in which thc asset is dcployed

) Availability offunding to replacc thc asset

) Changcs in the nrarket in rclation to the assct

Provisions

Provisions wcrc raiscd and managcment determined an cstirnatc based on lhe information

available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates olprovisions is includcd in Note 22 &

25

Provisions are measured at the managcment's best estimatc ofthc cxpcnditure rcquircd to

scftlc thc obligation at the rcporting date, and arc discountcd to prescnt value wherc thc

effect is material. Chuka university management has provided for a provision for bad

debts at the ratc of loZ ofthe Receivables from exchange transactions.

26
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd .Iunc 30, 2023.

6) l)rchcqucr llecurrcnt Grants

Total

7) Othcr Rcvcrrue from Non-Exchangc Transactions

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022

Othcr RcvcDuc from Non-Exchange Transactions Kshs Kshs

Surchargcs & Fines 1,232,27s 441;166

Fines for Damages

Total | 232,27 5 44t,766

8) Tuition and Related lncom.

)1

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Ministry of tlducation-Exchequcr llccurrcnt Crants

Ju ly l l I,154,560 I10,700,084

Aurust I I t,154,560 I 10,700,084

Septcmber I I1,t54,560 r 10,700,084

Octobcr I I1,154,560 ll0.700.084

November ll1,154,561 I10.700.084

December I I I,154,560 I10,700,084

January r I l,154,561 I10,700,084

February

March

I I1,154,561 I10,700,084
l11,r54,558 110,700,084

April I n,154,560 I 10,700,084

May I I1,154,560 112,379,27 5

Junc I I I,154,560 I t2,379,279

1"333,854,72r 1,33t,759J94

Dcscri on 2t22-2023 202t-2022

Rcvcruc from Exchan Trsnsactions Kshs Kshs

Income from Diploma & Certificates Courses 62,7 54,750 t63,678,900

Income from Govcmment Sponsored Students 308,7r6,534 394,805,400

Income from Self-Sponsored Undergraduate Students 74.956,880 124,125,500

lncome from Self-S raduate Students 15,127,050 62,362,200

Total Incomc Earncd 461,555,214 144,972,000

Lcss: Non Tuition Incomc Includcd in thc I]lcomc Earned

Caution Moncy (8.452.000)

Medical Fees ( 18.s14.000)

Student Union (5.641.000)

Less

Tuition Fces Refund (2,71 I,l I l)
(35,318,1l r)

Add: Tuition Rclatcd lncomc
Student ID 107,000

Activity Fees 289,000

Registration Fee 366,500

Chuta Unlv.tsttr is ISO9001:2o15 Cc U12d......l rphln*E titottt,t.t alSu$tttittohilit! [ot l]dh'r l.i.fu



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Statemcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30, 2023.

9) Othcr Miscellrncous Incomc from llxchangc 'fransactions

l0) Employmcnt Expcnses

DErcription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Emoloymcnt Exoenses Kshs Kshs

Personncl Emoluments:
103,829,970July I I t,886,028

Auqust I12,614,336 r04,58 r,973

SeDtemb€r t t2,545,926 105,675,941

C)ctober I10,995,925 107,202,0t0

28

Examination [:ees 1,120,000

Mcntorship Fecs 2,015,000

Examination lress Supcrvision 65,000

Matcrial Dcvelopment
Attachment Fces

903,000
I 19,000

Quality Assurance 48,500

Subtotal s,033,000

TotalTuition & Rclatcd IDcomc for the Ycar 466,588,2t 4 709,653,889

D.scriDtion 2022-2023 20zl-2022
Othcr Miscellancous Income from Exchanqc Transrctions Kshs Kshs

Wear and Tear 8'19,703 396,544

Hire ofFacilities 888,387 379.605

Disposal of Miscellaneous ltems less loss 148,435 266,135

Accommodation Charges 18,472,t00 14,437,200

Application Fees 2,51 I,820 2,322,649

Confcrences & Seminars 2,000 r,350

Library SubscriDtion 702,000

Research Funds 8,806,469 2,602,210

Catering Services 927,942 218,208

Medical Services

Farm Products

t9,935,665 t2,312,024
998,557 132,7 52

Hillsid€ Hotel 6,172,830 2.204.654
Rentallncome 7,991,865 r0.051.588
Water Seruices l,043,3 l0 500,000

Intcrest on Dank DcDosit 637,396 6,400,803

R€marking 4,000

Printing and Photocopy 3,626 24,33 t

Basic Needs 294,250

Advertisement (CorDorate s€rvices) 3,000

Academic gowns and sraduation Fee 10.971.000 t6,577,000
Course Retake I 1.288,400 8,500

Academic Transcripts 18,000

lnsurance Compensation 200,000

Lab Analysis 50,400

Cym lncome 35,900

Tot{l 92.689.80s 69.132.803

Chaha Univcrsllf lr ISO 9Nl:2015 Ccrtif.n......Insti.ing Et rirunmentnl S n in hilit) lrr lr.uer l-ifc



Novcmber I I 1,95s,229 106,199,490

Decembcr 1tt,734,'162 106,616.756

January

Fcbruary

122 986 885

1t2,607,870
I 18,702,4't 6

I08,392,835

March l I1,983,280 t 12,817 ,283
April I I1,809,292 l r 1,268,836

Mav I I1.990.809 |3,923,541
Junc
'l'otal

I I1,706,366 l12,748,138

1,354,816,708 l,3r L959.249

Casual Labour Expenscs 6,594.986 12.t06.43't

Gratuity Expense t0,950,853 33,670,295

Hospitalizstion & Medical Expenses l't,976,943 18, t6l,l39
Totsl cmploymcnt Expcnscs 1.390J39.490 1.375.897.120

Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023.

I l) Council Erpenscs

l2) Establishmcnt Expcnsc!

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022

Estsbli!hmcrt Expenses Kshs Kshs

Tcaching Demonstration and Watering Units 1,4t3,880

Tot{l I,413,880

l3) Rcpnirs and Maintcnancc Expclscs

29

Dcscription 2022-2023 202t-2022
Council Erpenscs Kshs Kshs

Sittinc Allowance, Lunch Accommodation &Mileage I I,866,22',1

Sittinc Allowance 2,802,860

Mcdical Expenses 45,090

Induction and Training 1,503,469
'fravel and Accommodation 4,747,765

Other allowances 172,000

Totrl 9,271,184 11,866,227

DcscriDtion 2022-2023 2021-2022

RcDairs and MaintcDarrce ExDenses Kshs Kshs

Vehicle RepairVTransport Operating Expenses I t,727,989
Maintenance of Motor vehicle t,113,700

Fuel & C)ils-Cenerator 2,035,405

Crounds Maintcnance 95,603 534,020

Computer Hardware |,299,t69
Computer/Soflware Maintenance 83,520 2,986,274

Plant & Equipment 2.830.319 I,289,3',17

Furniture 792,019 84,430

Buildings 5,653,766 25;7 50,249

Library Books 352,800

'l'otal 12,220,896 44,407,144

ChuhUnitcrsit!lsISO9001:2015Ce Ulrd......l,t:tpirhu! l: ti.on tcutul ,\uttthrubilit.t' lot llett$ l.ik



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd June 30, 2023.

l4) Acadcmic Expcnscs

l5) Studcnts and Alumri Iixpcnscs

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Students arld AIumni cxDcnses Kshs Kshs
Student Welfare Expenses 5,220.491 t4,582,144
Student Work Study Expenses I,712,537
Basic Needs Expensc 494,t77
Total 5220,491 16,788.858

l6) StarlWelfare & Dcvclopmcnt Erpcnscs

Dclcription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Statf Welf.re & DeveloDmcnt exDenscs Kshs Kshs
StaffDevelopment - 409,950 187,500
Staff Wclfare Exp€nses 1,545,780 9,090,760
Staff Education Fund-Tuition Waiver 3,541,905 3,'198.67 5

Totfll 5,497,63s 13,076,935

l7) Finance Costs

Description 2022-2023 202t-2022
Finrnc. Cost Kshs Kshs

Bank Charges Interest t ,917,7 56 2,137,297
Totrl Finrncc Cost 1,917,756 2.137,297

l8) Depreciation and Amortizatior

30

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Academic Expcnscs
Part- Time Lect. Expenscs

Kshs

56,434,033

Kshs
I13,429,408

Graduation Expenscs 9,669,324 20.119,291

Teaching Practice & Field Attachment All 12,249,658 27,684,900
Acadernic Field Trips 4,217,958 t,842,640
Tcaching Materials
Exam Sr.rpervision

9 I l3 45t
639,636

4,0'13,732

6,192,045
Travelling & Subsistence (Part Timc Lecturcrs) r36,000
Rcsearch Expenses t4,s99,25't 't2.875,622

Tolal Acadcmic Erpcnscs 106,923,3t7 I86.353,638

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Dcprcciation and A mortizrtion Kshs Kshs
Buildings 59,712,840 56,900,682
Plant & Equipment 87,279,683 84,896,462
Motor Vehicles 39,328,625 39,328,625
Furniture & Fittings 13,160,745 12,355,t74
Computer Hardware t2,933,027 26,043,606
Library Books 4,',129,837 4,729,835
Amortization of Computer Software 936,384 2,809,148
'fotal Dep & Amortization 218,081,r4l 221,063,532

Chule Unlvctsh! ls ISO9(nI:2015 Ccd0.d......lnspiring Dtrironment t S|s:t(inflbilit.t ht Btlter t.ik



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30' 2023.

19) Usc of goods nnd scrviccs

Description 2022-2023 2020-2021

Usc ofCoods and Scrviccs Kshs Kshs

Staff Insurances GPA&WIBA 6,015,248 r4,095,164

Fuel and Oils-Generator 209,344

Fuel and Oils-Motor vehicles 8,904,675

Motor Vehicle Insurance |,784,628 2,2t6,916

P lnsurances Buildin and Other Asscts

Travelliu and Subsistence for staff 3,546,4t2 12,870, 5

Uxternal Travelli 1,08 t,l7l
Universit Committees'Ex ses 1,893,27 5 3,490,465

Animal Brecding Expenses 14,800

and Tele hone 967,226 t,985,160

Electricit Ex ses 16,223,266 15,20t,345

Ilonorarium
water Supply and Sewerage Expenses 938,988 1.062,473

Staff Uniforms 393,l3s 1,412,580

News Joumals and Videos 984,200 1,040,070

Printi & Publishi

Office Statione I 1,970,188 t4,213,362

SubscriDtions to Nursing Council

General Subscription 3,514,840 4,439,339

Cam ses Ex ses 4,639,637

Professional Services- ISO 232,O00 413,560

Profcssional Services- s

LI ire ofSecurit Services 2t,661,500 20,237,500

Hire of Cleanin Services 10,008,434 10,773,000

Internet Expenses 18,192,r39 28,359,464

I Fees 156,600 2,537,488

Chancellor's nses

Professional Services

Oflicial Entertainment 2,168,466 2,005,658

Confercnces & Seminars 2,126,391 6,290,49t

Cleani Materials 1,415,266 517,4't0

Social Res nsibili I 1,060,084 6.182.109

Quality Assurance fees -CUE Subscription 6,000 3,435,000

Farm lex nses 2,480,73 t 5,81 r,t00

Advertisement & Publicit 3,62t,474 19,660, r90

Exhibitions and Local Shows 1,388,030 12,794,692

P /l-and rates 4l1,500 4l 1,500

KUCCPS Placement fees 5,347,500 4,7 t0,000

[-andsca of Universi Grounds 979,1t4 5,034,686
'f ofUniversi Assets

Nairobi Campus Expense 508,164

Purchase ofGamcs UI ment 874,580

wildlife Conservanc

Covid l9 Ex nses 466;150

s a 17,500

nsation Ex sesCom r,283,016 925,500

3l
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Chuka Univcrsitv
Ann ual Ilcports antl Fina
ttor thc ycar Endcd Junc

22) Dctailcd Analysis of thc Cash antt Cash Equivalcnts

20) Provision for doubtfut debts

2l) Cash and Cash Equivalcn

ncial Statcmcnts
30,2023.

ts

5l

Audir Fees

Caterin nscsEri
PD rchase fo cM d ca uDr
'l"otnl

tionDcscrt
2022_2 023 2021-2022

Prov st ns0 rfo ol) ub fu Dcbts
Ksfis Kshs

B/IIIla u

66 736ncleas e/Dccreasc Du n thc Year Period
Ba na cc lls 30th uJ nc 20 3

Dcscri tion

2022-2023 2021-2022
uiyalcnasCashCash &

Kshs Kshs
KCB F cees o cction A/C 30 57 354 9

15,450 932
KCB-O r.ions /c 73 9 985 14,855 829

39r08 894 l0l4 7t5
utE G U c 02 39 89 7 3

094 268 03020 17t
- Caterin D A/C 02 0298 8 990 8

6,s99 748 7,957,257
fces co ec on AlC 02 02 6 4 453 96

3 123 127 73'lt2 987
Resea Frch nu d KEP P 02 602 722 525

r0l 9t 57764 236
TO A/C 02 20 98770822

5t0 2 308 187
tive BBn k -Dcvclo en NC 0 002 85 89 090

2 442,503 3 844 839
ra ve- Fees oc cct on A/C 0 290 85 8 0099

3,084,201 6 t7t 444
Famil anB Fk ccs oc cctioh A/C 0 45 00000 62 4

239 )t< t8 065,820
Barcla Bank A/C 203 572 67 66

6,o37 ,788 952,473
tas dn ard Chartcred anB k 0/c 02 402 57 00

83625 385 s2t34 638
ut cra ons A/C 02 026 45 459

548t9 830 268333
urt Cratuit 02 20 763 39640

t I,943 5 376 530
ut Rctcn 02tion 026 73 3 9666

35 505 521,384
Total

2
80927 73t

2022-2023 2022-z023
Finarcial instituai on

Account numlrcr Kshsa) Currcnt account

FCBK ecs Co c on
I t03755419KCB-o perations

II1379t985
t4,85s,829

108,894,239Equiry IGU a/c
02t029398t713 4,268,209teriE u Caq ty ng D"p
0210298 | 89098 6,599,7 48tr feesEq cov cct on AlC
02 t026t 453469 3,t23,127u RcsEq v hcarc Fu d-n EK P P
02t026227 t525 l, t0 r,39 rEquity I'tillside n,/c
02t029877 0822 6,5 t0,t23C Banoop€ra k Dcvelopmen AlC 0l r20058189900 2,442,503

Ch ka Utth,ersll, ts BO 9001:20t5 Ccrui.(l stli bith! rt'r Bt:u( t.ift



Chuka Univcrsitv
Annual lleports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Enrlcd Junc 30,2023.

Coopcrative- Fces Collc ction A/C

23) Itcccivabtc from Erchangc,l.ransactions

24) llcccivablc from Non_Lxchrngc,I.ransaction

53

0t r29058 t89900 3,084,20tFam B na k Fv olC c on C
054000002641 9,245,523Barclays Bank

203s?27666 6,037,?8EStandord Chartclcd Bank
01020247 5 5200 25,385,836Equity Opcrations A,/C
02t0261453459 r9,830,548Equity Cratuirv
0210263739640 I1,943,465Equity Rctention
0210263739666 5,235,350Sub-totrl

228,558,08rb) On - call acposits

N/A

N/A

Sub- lotll
Fixcd dcposits nccountc)

N/A

Sulr- totnl

d) Steff car load mortgagc

N/A

N/A

Sub- totat

c) Othcrs(s pccify)

Cash in tmnsit

cash in hand

Mobile moncy accounts

Sub- toafll

Grald totnl
228,558,081

Dqscri tion
2022-2023 20zt-2022m llxchnlllcccivablc fro 'I'ransac tioos

Kshs KshsReceis udc tsn Fecs bleva
54 160 929 4t 8s8 584Hill Sidc Ilotel

348 r50Im t Dcbtors
l'1,46tRental lncomc Rcccivablc

799t6 97 24,366 867
7t 157 189 573 0l

o
,r

aa RcccI a lcsb from tlxch n c'l'ransactio r|S

for btfum nUP on Dou D bts
Less: lm

7 t I,572) 665 736N Ilccc tvab Ilcs mro cEx ah n 'Iransaction
617 907 65

Dcscri tion
2022-2023 2021-2022TrsnstctionfroIlc c ab c m oN n xE ach n

Kshs Kshs

Chtko U h,e.sh.t ts tSO 9001:20t 5 Ce.tilied.. lhVirin! t)^.irotDEntt Ittit,trl)iIht t,. tttth,. t.iI.,



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For thc Year Endcd June 30, 2023,

Exchequer Capital Grant 5,772,259

Total 5,172,259

25) Prepaymcnts

Dcscription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Prepaymcnts Kshs Kshs
Prepaid Staff Insurances 5,631,471 3,9E2,913

Property Motor Vehicle Insurance t6t,9l6 t82,786
Totrl s,793,3E7 4,115.159

26) Invcntory

34

Dcscrlption 2022-2023 2021-2022
Inveotory Kshs Kshs
Main Stores 8.086.346 8.t68.760
Medical Supplies 1.423.599 1.877.358

Farm Supplics & Consumablcs 3,163,026 5.539,883
Hill Side Hotel Supplics and Consumablcs 237,t64 194,536

Catcring Supplics & Consumables 570,099 1,303,1%
Totrl 13,480,2:t4 t7,083,733

Cha*o Unlycrdty It ISO9AOl:2015 C.flUl.tl......lnspi ng Enrlro mutal S|delnnbiltt! lrr lrc tt LiI.
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Chuka Univcrsity
Annual llcports and Financial Statcmcnts
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30, 2023.

28) Intangible Asscts, Computcr Softrvarc Schcdulc

36

Dcscription Kshs

Y car 202112022

Costl\ alrc at ll7l202l 9,363,828

Additions/ad iustments
Cost/Valuc tt 30 I 06 I 2022

Accumulated Amortization I /07 /2021
Amortization Cha for the Period

9,363,828

5,618,296

2,809, 148

Accumulated Amortization 30/ 06/2022 8,427,444

Carrying amount as at 30 Junc 2021

Carryinq amount as at 30 Jrutl.c 2022 936,384

Y arr 202112022

Cost/Value ar l/7 /2022 9,363,828

Additions/adiustments

Cost/Value at 30 10612023 9,363,828

Accumulated Amortization I /07 12022 8,427,444

Amortization Charge for the Period 936,384

Accumulated Amortization 30/06/2023 9,363,828

Carryine amount as tt30 June 2022 936,384

Carrying amount as at 30 Junc 2023

Description 2022-2023
Kshs

Work In progrcss
Micro soft 360-[lusiness Central 7,609,099

Library Information Management System 950,000
8,559,099

Chuka Unlvc6ltr is ISO9N)l:2015 Ccdfi.d......htsphinc E'triron',t titl,tunni,r bilitt lot Rtfi,lt Lift



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Ilcports and l'inancial Statcments
For thc Ycar Endcd .Iunc 30,2023.

29) Biological Asscts

22123
Itcm Unit Qtv

Cost/Un
it Oty Cost/Unit 2l t22

CROPS

Eananas
Bunch
CS 120 350

42,000 2,00
0 300 600,000

'lrecs Plants
4,469

I ,000

4,469,000 4,00
0 I ,000 4,000,000

Ornamental 'l-rees PIants 23,089 35 808,1 l5

Napier grass lories 4 12,000 48,000 I l5 4 000 460,000

Sudan Grass Seeds

Satche
ts 60 100

6,000

Boma Rhodes Tons 55 4,000 220,000

Sudan Grass
Pickup
s 2 12,000

24,000
l5 4,000 60,000

Green Crams Kgs 0
I,04

0 125 130,000

Cow Pcas ke 400 100 40,000

Green maiz-e Plots 100 5,000 500,000

\/EGETABLES
Spinach Plots 4,53 8 4,538 2,000 2,000

Kales Plots 2 4,500 9,000 3 2,000 6,000

Chinesc Cabbage Plots
10,000

2,000 2,000

Black nisht Shade Plols 7 5,000 4,000 4,000

Com frcy Plots I ,000 l,000 t,000 1,000

Caulliflowcr Plots 2,000 2,000
Spider PlantV
sagheti PIots 2,000

2,000
3 2,000 6,000

Amaranlh Plots 2 I5,000 30,000 7 4,000 8,000

Maize stovers
[.orrie
s 2 12,000

24,000

LIVESTOCK

Calvcs
Numb
crs 2 50,000 100,000

Cows in milk
Numb
ers 6 250,000 l,500,000

Malurc Dairy cows Fleads 7 250,000 1,750,000 2 250,000 s00,000

B ulls I Ieads 80,000 80,000 2 80,000 160,000

Younq heifers I Icads 3 40,000 120,000 40,000 40,000

Young bulls lleads 30,000 30,000 30,000 60,000

Calf Bulls I'leads 15,000 1s,000

Calf hcifers tleads J 20,000 60,000 2 30,000 60,000
INDIGENOUS
CATTLE
Maturc Males lleads 80,000 80,000 4 80,000 320,000

Maturc F-cmales Hcads 7 60,000 420,000 7 60,000 420,000
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30) Payablcs / Accruals from Exchangc Transactions

38

120,000Young Bulls Heads 4 2s,000 100,000 8 15,000

Young lleifers Heads t4 30,000 420,000 9 10,000 270,000

CAI,VES Heads

Males

Females

Heads 3 10,000

15,000

30,000

t5,000
2 10,000 20,000

60,000FIeads I 4 15,000

GOATS Heads
Billy (Mature
Males) Heads 6 t5,000

90,000
50 8,000 400,000

Nanny (Mature
Females) Heads 102 10,000

1,020,000
123 6,000 738,000

YOUNG GOATS Heads
Does ( Young
females) Heads l6 8,000

128,000
2t _3,000

2,500

63,000
Young Males
(Buckiline) LIeads 3l 8,000

248,000
l6 40,000

Kids Females
(Doeline) Heads 21 s,000

r 0s,000
9 3,000 2't,000

Kids males Heads l7 s,000 85,000 25 3,000 75,000

SHEEP I{eads

Males Heads 3 4,000 t2,000

7,000Females Heads 2 3,500

Females Heads 2,000 2,000

PIGS Heads

Sows (Fcmale) Heads 5 30,000 150,000 l3 30,000 390,000

Pislcts Heads t4 3,200 44,800

LLAMA
Males Heads r00,000 t00,000 2 r20,000 240,000

Females Heads 3 r00,000 300,000 4 r00,000 400,000

TOTALS r0,823,6s3 r2. r 09.800

D€scription 2022-2023 2021-2022
Payablcs / Accruals from excha[ce transactiols Kshs Kshs
General Payables 8,655,814 7,625.558
Pa(-Timc Lccturcrs-wases & Salaries Accrucd 2,695,391

Audit Fees Payable t,392.000 696,000

Unallocated Receipts 38,479,301

CDF Control Account 5,561,388

HELB Control Account 385,000

Pay As You Eam 1,908,805

National Indusrial Traininc Authority 34,700
Withholding Tax Payable 63,462
Withholding Vat Payable I 15,332

WIP Proiccls Payable 384,629,939
Totrl 441,225,740 I I,016.949
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2022-2023 2021-2022

Payrblcs Kshs Kshs

Student Caution Money Payable 30,617,500 25,333,268

Staff Gratuity Payable 23,552,643 25,388,899

Prcpaid Tuition Income t4 | ,3't 5,879 25,78t,t t7

Student Union Fce Payable 57,500

Retention for w.l.P Payablc 248,7 5'7 ,t85 216.740,350

'I'otal 444,360,708 293,243,634

Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Reports and Financial Statcmcnts
For the Ycar Endcd June 30, 2023.

3l) Rcfundablc Dcposit

Dcscr lon

32) Exchcqucr Capital Grants

Dcscri tion 2022-2023 202t-2022

Erchequcr Capitrl Grants Kshs Kshs

Mlnistry of Education
lst Disburscmcnt 10,000,000 20,000,000

2nd Disburscment 5.772.259 20,000,000

Totrl ts,7122sg 40.000.000

33) Work in progress

39

Dcscri IOn 2022-2021 2021-2n22

Work in Progrcss Ttrnqiblc Asscts Kshs Kshs

Mals flostcl Wing A 4t,617,953

Professional Fees Administration Block 9.016,349 5,392,625

Professional Fees Science Res€arch Park t4,643,254 56,929,585

Administrstion Block 115,773,628 t3'1,465,632

Food Technology Block 19,126,609 68,419,379

Science Rescarch Park 221 ,77 3,19'1 430,863,334

Construction of water Tank Kairini 284,154

3000cm Rcinforced Concrete watcr Rescrvoir '7 52,504 1,022,834

Male Hostel wi B 80,423,'158 54,225,193

Electric Fence at Kairini Farm 7,791,050

Isembe Campus t 53,064

92,666,3r4Consultancy services for proposed Ultra-Modcrn Library Rlock 18.067,863

Proposed Upgrading of University Access road 5,476,449 32.932.334

P Mechanical Worksh 2,53',1,023 609,972

Rcfurbishmcnt of Elimu Plaza 6,813,'164

Proposed Bulky watcr and irrigation system at Kairini Farm 4,05s,935

Water intake and piping at Kairini I,334,639 t7 ,624,235

Mwaniate farm fencing 7,636,900

Acquisition and relocation ofchiefs omcc 10,809,925 20,169,380

Construction of proposed Ultra-Modern Library 314,247,802 69,159,741

Milk Proccssing Plant 7.136,605

I be Cam s WIP 2,220,772

Food technolo Phase 2 2,295,256
'fotal 825,919,788 I,078,7 49,224
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34) Work in Progrcss-Intangiblc Asscts

DcscriDtlon 2022-2023 zo2t-2022
work irl Prosrcss lntrnsiblc Asscts Kshs Kshs

Library Information Management System 950,000

Enterprise Resource Planning 7,609,098

E,559,098

40
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35) FINANCIAL ITISK MANAGEME,NT

Chuka Univcrsity activities cxpose it to a variety of financial risks including crcdit and

liquidity risks and effccts of changes in lorcign currcncy. 'l'he University ovcrall risk

managcmcnt programmc focuscs on unprcdictability of changes in thc busincss

cnvironmcnt and sceks to minimisc thc potcntial advcrse cffect of such risks on its

performancc by setting acceptable Icvcls of risk. Thc Univcrsity does not hcdge any risks

and has in placc policics to ensurc that credit is only extended to customcrs with an

cstablished credit history.

'lhc IJniversity financial risk managcment objcctivcs and policies are detailcd bclow:

(i) Crcdit risk

'l'he University has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a countcrparty will

bc unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash

cquivalents, and dcposits with banks, as well as tradc and other rcccivables and

avai lable-for-salc Ilnancial investments.

Management asscsscs the credit quality of each customer, taking inlo account its

financial position, past cxperience and other factors. Individual risk lirnits are set

bascd on internal or exlernal asscssmcnt in accordance with limits set by the council.

'l'he amounts prcscnted in the statement offinancial position are net ofallowances for

doubtful receivables, estimated by the cntity's managcmcnt based on prior experience

and their asscssmcnt of the current economic environment.

'fhc carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements

representing the cntity's maximum exposure to crcdit risk without taking account of

the value ofany collateral obtained is made up as l'ollows:

4l
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'I'he customcrs undcr the fully perforrning catcgory are paying thcir dcbts as they

continue trading.'l-he crcdit risk associated with these rcccivables is minimal and thc

allowance for uncollectible amounts that the entity has rccognised in the financial

statements is considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

'l'he council sets the entity's crcdit policics and objcctives and lays down parameters

within which the various aspecls ofcredit risk management arc opcrated.

(ii) Liquidity risk managcmcnt

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk nranagcnrent rests with the University

Council, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework flor thc

management of the entity's short, mcdium and long-term funding and liquidity

management requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous

monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

'fhe table below rcpresents cash flows payabte by thc cntity under non-derivative

financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturitics at the reporting date. The

amounts disclosed in the tablc arc thc contraclual undiscounted cash flows. Ilalances

due within l2 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is

not significant.

42

fotal rmount I'ully I'ast Impaircd
Pcrforming Duc

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 Junc 2023

lleccivablcs from cxchangc transactions

lleceivables from non-cxchangc lransaclions

Bank balances

70,445,617

5,7',72,259

228,558,081

'10,445,617

5,172,259

228,558,081

NiI Nil

NiINil

304,775,957 304,775,957

At 30 June 2022

Ileccivables from exchangc transaclions 65,907,86565,90'1,86s Nir Nil

Receivables from non-exchange transactions Nil Nil Nil Nit

Bank balanccs 272,73t,809 272,731,809 Nil Nil

Total 338,639,674 338,639,67 4 Nil Nir

Chuko U,tlvercitt is ISO 9001:2015 Certuied......htspitin* Iiurironuotk Sunuintbilitt lot Bdttr l-if!



Chuka Univcrsity
Annual Reports and Financial Statcmcnts
For the Ycar Dndcd Junc 30 2023.

Lcss than I monlh

'f otal

Bctwccn
l-3

months

Kshs

Ovcr 5
months

Kshs

At 30 .Iune 2023 Nil Nil

Trade payablcs
44t,22s,740

Nit NiI
44t,225,740

Currcnt portion of
borrowings

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Provisions Nir Nil Nil Nil
Deferred income Nit Nil Nit Nil
Employcc benefit
obligation

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 441,225,740 Nil Nil 441,225,740

At 30 Junc 2022
Nit 304,260,583Tradc payables 304,260,583 Nil

NilCurrcnt portion of
borrowings

Nit Nil Nil

Provisions Nil Nil Nil Nil
Deferred incomc Nil Nit Nit Nil
Employee benefit
obligation

Nil Nit Nil Nil

Total 304,260,583 Nil Nil 304,260,583

Kshs Kshs

(iii) Markct risk
'fhe board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in asscssing the risk

faced by the entity on an ongoing basis, cvaluate and test the design and effectiveness

of its internal accounting and opcrational controls.

Markct risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate,

cquity prices and forcign exchange rales, which willaffect thc cntity's incomc or the

value of its holding of financial instruments. 'l'hc objective of market risk

managcment is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing markct

risk rests with the Audit and Risk Managcment Committee.
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'l-he entity's Finance l)eparlmcnt is responsiblc for thc dcvclopmcnt ol dclailcd risk

nranagcmcnt policies (subject to rcvicw and approval by Audit and Risk Managemcnt

Committee) and for thc day{o-day implemcntation of thosc policies.

'lhere has becn no change to thc entity's exposurc to rnarkct risks or the manner in

which it rranagcs and rncasurcs the risk.

a) Forcign currcncy risk

'fhe entity has transactional currcncy exposures. Such cxposure arises through

purchases of goods and services that are done in currcncics other than the local

currency. Invoiccs dcnominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days frorn

the date of the invoice and convcrsion at the tims of payment is done using thc

prcvailing exchangc ratc.

Chuka Univcrsity did not have a foreign currency dcnominatcd monetary asscts and

monetary liabilities at the cnd of thc reporting pcriod.

Thc entity manages foreign cxchange risk form luture commercial transactions and

recognised assets and liabilities by projccting for expccted sales procceds and

matching the samc with expccted payments.

b) Interest rate risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the cntity's financial condition may be advcrsely

affccted because ofchangcs in intcrest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk

arises from bank deposits. This exposes thc entity to cash flow intcrest rate risk.

The interest ratc risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate movemcnts on

thc entity's deposits.

Managcmcnt of intcrcst ratc risk

To manage the interest ratc risk, managcment has endcavourcd to bank with

institutions that offbr lavourable intercst rates.
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Scnsitivity analysis

'l'hc Univcrsity analyses its intcrest ratc cxposurc on a dynamic basis by

conducting a scnsitivity analysis.'l'his involves dctermining the irnpact on profit

or loss of dcfincd ratc shifts. 'l-he scnsitivity analysis lor intcrest ratc risk

assumcs that all other variablcs, in particular foreign exchangc ratcs, remain

constant.

Fair valuc of financial assets and liabilitics

a) Financial instrumcnts mcasurcd at fair valuc

I)ctcrmination of fair valuc and fair valucs hicrarchy

IPSAS 30 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniqr.rcs based on whether thc

inputs to those valuation tcchniqucs are observable or unobservablc. Observablc

inputs rcflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable

inputs reflect thc University's market assumptions. 'l'hcsc two types of inputs

have crcated the following fair value hicrarchy:

Level I - Quoted priccs (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities. 'l'his levcl includes listed equity securities and debt instruments

on exchangcs.

l-evcl2 - Inputs othcr than quoted prices included within Level I that arc

observable for the assct or liability, cithcr directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, dcrivcd from priccs).

Levcl 3 - inputs for the asset or Iiability that are not based on observablc

markct data (unobservable inputs).'l'his levcl includes equity investments

and dcbt instruments with significant unobscrvable components. This

hierarchy rcquires thc usc ol observable market data whcn available. The

entily considers relevant and obscrvablc market prices in its valuations

whcre possiblc.

45
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'Ihe lollowing table shows an analysis of financial and non- financial

recorded at fair value by levcl oflhe fair value hierarchy:

Lcvcl I Kshs Lcvcl 2 Kshs Lcvcl
3 Kshs

Total Kshs

At 30 Junc 2023
Financial Assets

Quoted equity investments Nil Nil Nit Nil
Non- financial Assets
lnvestment property Nil NiI Nil Nit
Land and buildings 3,7 62,0t I,089 Nil 3,762,01t,089
Total 3,762,011,089 Nit 3,762,011,089

At 30 Junc 2022
Financial Asscts
Quoted equity investmcnts Nil Nit Nit Nil
Non- financial Assets
lnvestment property Nil Nit Nit NiI
Land and buildings 3,335,581,853 NiI 3,335,5 8l,853
Total 3,s35,581,853 Nir 3J35,581,853

'fhere wcrc no transfcrs between lcvels [, 2 and 3 during the ycar. Disclosures of fair values of

financial instruments not measured at fair value have not bcen made becausc the carrying

amounts are a reasonablc approximation oftheir fair values.

iv) Capital Risk Managcmcnt.

The objective ofthe entity's capital risk management is to safeguard thc lJoard's ability to

continue as a going concern.'fhe entity capital structurc comprises ofthe following funds:

46

instruments

2022-2023 2021-2022

Ksh Kshs

Revaluation reserve 1,300,21 1,588 1,300,2 I 1,588

Retained eamings 4,239,740,388 4,239,342,013

Capital reserve 2,329,420,6r0 2,313,648,351

Total funds 7,869,372,,586 7,853,201,952

Total borrowings Nil Nil
Less: cash and bank balances 228,558,08 r 272,73t,809

Net debt/(excess cash and cash cquivalents) Nit NiI

Gcaring N/A N/A
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36) ITELATE,D PARTY DISCLOSUIIES

Naturc of rclatcd party rclationships

lintitics and othcr partics rclatcd to thc cntity includc thosc pa(ics who havc ability to cxercisc

control or excrcisc significant influcnce over its opcrating and l'inancial dccisions. Rclatcd

parties include management pcrsonncl, thcir associates and closc family mcmbers.

'l'hc entity is relatcd to;

Oovcrnmcnt of Kcnya

Chuka Univcrsity gcts funding from the national govcrnmcnt through thc national trcasury of

Kcnya.'l'hc funding is separated in to two: Recurrent grant and capital grant which is uscd to

financc part ofthc univcrsity budget.

Olhcr rclalcd pa rtics includc:

i) Thc l'rincipal Sccrctary, Statc Dcpartmcnt for University Education and

llcscarch,

Chuka University is an independent public cntity establishcd through a charter as per the

[Jnivcrsitics Act, 2012. It is rcprcscntcd by thc Cabinet Secretary for Education, who is

rcsponsiblc for thc general policy and slrategic direction ofthe [Jniversity

ii) Thc Univcrsity managemcnt;

The Univcrsity managcment is mandated lo make the day-to-day decisions on behalf of thc

Univcrsity. 'l'hcy have a significant influence ovcr thc operating and financial dccision

iii) Thc Council Membcrs;

As the governing body oflhe Univcrsity, thc Council, have a rcsponsibility of maintaining a

sound syslem ofintcrnal control that supports the achievcment ofpolicics, aims and objcctives,

whilst salcguarding thc public and othcr univcrsity resourccs. Thc Univcrsity Council is vestcd

with powers and authority by its Charter and thc Univcrsities Act,2012.

'l'he Council is also thc cxccutive govcrning body rcsponsible for thc academic policy and

stratcgic dircction olthe Univcrsily, including its cxtcrnal rclations, and lor thc Administration

of thc Univcrsity.

'l'hc Council is responsible lbr thc management of the Univcrsity's financcs and assets, in

accordancc with thc Public Financial Managcmen( Acl,2012 and Public Financial rcgulations

ol20l5.
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iv) Thc Univcrsity Scnatc;
-l'his 

is thc acadcmic authority olthc tJniversity. It is cornposcd ofthc Vice - chanccllor', I)eputy

Vice Chancellors, Principals and Deputy Principal ofConstitucnt Collegcs, Deans, Dircctors,

Chairmen of thc Acadcmic Dcpartments, lwo Studcnts' Rcpresentativcs, Finance Officcr,

Registrar Acadernic, Rcgistrar (Adrn inistration and Planning) and Faculty Reprcscntatives. Its

role is to discuss and approvc student rcsults as wcll as studcnts'discipline.'l'he Scnate is

chaircd by thc Vice - Chancellor.

Rclatcd party transactions

a) Grants/Transfers from National Government

2022-2023 20zl t2022

Transfers from related partics'
Rccunent

Capital

Tolals

1,333,854,721

15,772,259

I,349,626,980

I,331,759J94
40,000,000

I ,37 I ,7 59 ,394

b) Kcy managcmcnt rcmuncration

2022t2023 202y2022

University Council

Key management compensation

Totals

9,271,184

3 r,338,085

40,609,269

I |,866,227

35,565,128

47,431,355

37) Evcnts aftcr thc rcporting pcriod

'Ihere werc no material adjusting and non- adjusting events aftcr thc rcporting period.

38) Ultimatc and Holding Entity

'fhe entity is a State Corporation under the Ministry ol Education. lts ultimatc parent is thc

Govcrnmcnt of Kenya.

39) Currcncy

The financial statcrnents are prcsentcd in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)
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20. APPENDICES

Appcndix l: Implemcntation Status of Auditor-Gcncral's Rccommcndations

1'he following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management

comments that were provided to the auditor.

Rcfcren
ce No.
on the

crternal
audit

Rcport

Issuc /
Obscrvations
from Auditor

Managcment
commcnts

Focal Point
person to

rcsolvc thc
issuc (Narze

and
designalion)

Status:
(Resolve
tl / Not
Resolve

d)

Timcframe

(Put a date
when you
expect lhe
issue to be
resolved)

Absence of title
deed for
KaringaniNdaga
nil14l

The title deed is

being processed
through the
ministry of lands

llead of
Estates,
Chuka
University

Not
resolved

March,
2024

Prof. Hcnry M. M'Ikiugu, Ph.D.

Vice Chancellor/CEO

27s September 2023
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Appendix II: Project Implementation Status

ONGOING PROJECTS AS AT 30/06/2023

PROJECT'S NAME Contract Sum
TOTAL CERTIFIED AS AT

30l06l2023
% Completion

Students' Recreation Centre 412,615,362 4II,796,713 700%

Perimeter Fence Phase IV Sec II t,986,402 1,s30,3s5 77%

Perimeter Fence Phase V and road levelling 16,067,7 5l 16,067,75r too%
Television & Radio Broadcasting Studio 23,406,1s5 22,493,385 96%

Reinforced Concrete Water Tank - Kairini 23,972,950 23,87 s,3s4 1000/"

Proposed Food Technology Tuitron 292,164,909 279,624,355 96%
Proposed Administration Block 1,410,808,347 941,550,342 67%

Consultants for Administration Block 197,342,943 195,806,140 700%

Proposed Science Research Park 1,929,373,938 226,996,580 72o/o

Consultants for Science Research Park I 83,939,0s3 82,5s5,093 98%
Business School Complex 349,082,563 348,rr7,697 700%
Proposed 3000m3 Reinforced concrete water reservoir 42,498,342 42,498,341 too%
Proposed Male Hostel Block Phase 1&2 1,259,250,000 963,432,707 77%

Proposed Access Roads at Kairini Farm 9,918,000 9,918,000 1-OO%

Consultancy services for proposed Ultra-Modem Library Block 249,624,475 234,163,4tO 94%

Chogoria, Igembe and Embu campus WIP 300,000,000 50,358,202 2Oo/o

Professional Fee Science Research Park Phase 2 pre contract t51,812,229 LL3,759,777 75%

Professional Fee Science Research Park Phase 2 post contract 37,953,05 8 9,488,465 25o/o

Proposed Perimeter Wall phase 6 Section 2 8,503,090 6,537,61.2 77%
Proposed Perimeter Wall phase 6 Section I 3,745,9t8 2,585,105 69%
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Proposed 200KVA Cenerator s,189,550 3,110,000 58o/o

Proposed mechanical workshop 8,990,592 7,840,956 87%

Proposed Monument at Gate A 2,999,804 2,948,083 98%

Proposed Renovation and Alteration of Elimu Plaza 9,521,6t5 9,s21,615 lOOo/o

Proposed upgrading of University access roads 118,670,397 L78,670,397 700%

Proposed Water lntake at Kairini 78,962,264 18,958,874 100%

Proposed Fencing at Mwanjate Farm 7,536,900 7,536,900 100%

Proposed Ndagani Chief Office Relocation 30,951,004 30,951,004 too%

Proposed Ultra-Modern Library L,5t0,480,482 383,407 ,543 24%o

Milk Processing Plant 52,717,476 7,1-36,605 14%

Food technology Phase 2 31,205,456 2,295,256

Library Management system implementation 3,787,2t2 r,675,562 44yo

Enterprise Resource Planning L5,218,156 7,609,098 50y

Chogoria, Embu and lgembe campuses 300,000,000 50,3s8,202 20%
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Appcndix III: Transfcrs from Othcr Government Entities

Nemc of the
MDA/Donor
Transferring thc
funds

Detc
rcceivcd

rs pcr
brnk

strtcmcnt

Wherc Rccorded/recoqnizcd

Neture:
RccurrenUDcveloDmenUOthcrs

Toael
Amount

- KES

Statcmcnt of
Financial

Pcrformencc
Capitel

Fu nd
Defcrred

Incomc Rcccrvablcs

Others
- must

be
spccific

Total
Transfers

d u ring
thr Yecr

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Totel N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Chuka University
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Appendix Iv: Recording ofTransfers from Other Government Entitiess

CHUKA
Telephone: 0202310512

0202310518

UNIVERSITY
P.O BOX 109-60400

Chuka

Chuka University wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to us as at 30!h June 2023 as indicated in the table below
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(F)=(D-E)

Confirmation ofamounts received by Chuka University as at 30tb June 2023

Amounts Disbursed by State Department for University Education
and Research (KShs) as at 30th June 2023

Amount Received
bv Chuka

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent Development Inter-
Ministerial

Total University (KShs)
as at 30rh JuDe

2023

Differences
(KShs)

(A) Itnl (c) (D)=(A+B+C) (E)

KCB2/04356 03.08.22 I 1 1,154,560 I I I,154,560 11t,154,560

KCB2/04494 08.09.22 I I1,154,560 I l 1,154,560 I I t, 154,560

KCB2/04558 03.10.22 I 1 l, 154,560 I I 1,154,560 l I1,154,560

KCB2/04468 1 ol.tO.ZOZZ 10,000,000 10,000,000 r 0,000,000

KCB2/04560 10.1t.22 r I 1,154,560 111,t54,560 I I l,l 54,560

KCB2/04561 09.12.22 I I1,154,561 
I

I r l, 154,561 l I1,154,561

KCB2/04562 30.t2.22 I 1 l, 154,560 I I 1,1 54,560 I l r,154,560

KCBZ1O462} I O}.OZ.ZZ lll,l54,56l 111,154,561 I l1,t54,561

KCB2/047t8 17.03.23 111,154,561 I I1,154,561 l I 1,154,561
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For the Year Ended June 30 2023.
KCBZ{04832 14-04-23 I11,154,558 I I1,154,558 I I1,154,558

KCBU04824 05-05-23 1 1 1,154,560 I I I,154,560 l r 1,154,560

KCBZ/04826 10-06-23 I I1,154,560 I I1,154,560 I I 1,154,560

KCB2/04833 29-06-23 1l I,154,560 I I I,154,560 I11,154,560

04.07.2023 5,772,259 5,772,259 5,772,259

Total 1333,854,721 15,772,259 1,349,626,980 1,349,626,980

Head of Accountants department of beneficiary Entity:

Name:,...... Sign. Date.......
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Appendix VI: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Name of the Organization: Chuka University
Telephone Numberl. +254 (061) 2304004
Email Address: vc@chuka.ac.ke
Name of CEO/l\{D/IIead: Prof. Henry M. M'Ikiugu, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor
Name and contact details of contact person (in case of any clarificatiotrs): Prof. Henry M. M'Ikiugu, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor
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Project
Name

Project
Description

Project
Obiectives

Project Activities Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Source of
Funds i

Implementing
Partners

22,540 194,330 AIA Community and

Neighbouring
Institutions

Tree
Planting

Planting oftrees in
the neighbouring
community

To ensure I 0olo

forest cover as

per the
govemment
Agenda

Planting trees in
the Neighbouring
community

I) -,. t
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Appendix VII: Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template
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Date:20222023

Entity: Chuka University
Period to
which this
report
refers

Year:2022/2023
Quarter:Q l,Q2,Q3&Q4

Name of
Reporting
OIIicer

Prof. Henry M. M'Ikiugu, Ph.D. Vice Chancellor

Contact
details of
the
reportiug
oflicer:

Email:vc@chuka.ac.ke Telephone: +254 (061) 2304004

Column I Column II Column
m

Column IV Column V Column
VI

Column
vIIProgramme Sub-

programme
Disaster
Type

Category ofdisaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting

tion/ arednessres onse/reco /mi

Expenditure
item

Amount
(IGhs)

Comments

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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